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North
Baltleford For Discussion

MEETING DATE: December 8, 2021 MEETING: Special Planning Committee

TO: Randy Patrick, City Manager

FROM: Brent Nadon, Director of Finance

SUBJECT: Council Information for 2022 Budget Discussion and Additional Items

Back , round Information

Based on Budget 2022 discussion on November 18, Council requested an update on the current
proposed tax rate increase and information on other potential cost savings and their related
impacts.

Strategic Goal(s)

ÿ Sustainability SG2.
0

ÿ Economic Vitality SG3.
0

ÿ Excellence in Governance and Citizen Focused Services SG7
.
0

Discussion and Comment

1
. Historical context for decision making

Over the last five years the City has faced a difficult and rapidly changing operating
environment. The impact of the pandemic of over the last two years has only magnified cost and
revenue pressures, but the city has been able to mitigate the majority of the negative impact and
minimize cost increase while largely maintaining services.

Over the last five years the average tax increase for the General fund has been 2.85% and
3

.35% for Utilities, which has been only slightly higher than the average inflation rate of 2.2%. In
2020 and 2021, one percent of that increase did not got to operations, but was dedicated to
capital investments. The chart on the next page shows revenues, expenses and tangible capital
asset additions over the last five years for the City. Revenue has declined since 2016, and it has
grown slightly the last few years but overall remains below 2016 levels. On the other hand,
expenses have dropped every year since 2016, and remain below 2016 levels as well,
indicating that the City has been very successful in managing expense pressures. What this
also indicates is that additional cuts to expenses may not be sustainable without cuts in
services, or current service levels.
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You will note our capital additions have dropped over the last five years, which often happens
when budgets get tight, but may indicate we are not re-investing enough in our capital assets.
Our total capital asset value over the last three years has remained flat, and our depreciation in
2020 was just slightly less than our capital additions for the year. Internal capital work estimates
for UPAR projects alone indicate that at our current spending level, if we stopped taking any
new projects, it would take 17 years to eliminate the backlog. For sidewalk replacement we have
over 110 blocks to replace at an estimated cost of $12.2 million. This is why, on November 18,
Administration suggested allocating an additional $600,000 to sidewalks in the 2022 budget.
These type of measures will not resolve the backlog in the short term, but they are an important
step in the right direction.

Over the next five years, our general capital plan requires $5.1 Million per year and our utilities
capital plan requires $7.2 Million per year. As the majority of our capital funding comes from
reserves, with some from grants and cost sharing with provincial or federal governments, we
must generate almost the same dollar level of surplus funds in each of the general and utility
funds. If funding is not available the City either has to borrow money, or delay required work.

An additional factor we now need to consider is inflation. We have been living in a low inflation
environment for a long time, but Canada

's headline inflation rate rose to 4.7% in October 2021,

the highest inflation rate since 2003. It is hard to over-estimate the negative impacts of inflation,
as your buying power shrinks as all your material and resource costs increase. Even investment
returns suffer as a 4% inflation rate means even if you receive a 6% return, you real rate of
return after inflation is just 2%.

As we have already discussed, the City has very little room to cut costs further, short of reducing
or eliminating services. Increasing revenues is our other option, and taxation and fees make up
the majority (68% for 2022 budget) of our controllable revenue. Holding taxation revenues down
below actual cost will come at the cost of higher future rates as capital spending is delayed to
ensure current operations continue.



2
.Proposed General Tax increase

Starting Point - 4.98% (RCMP related) + 2.5% (Operations) = 7.48%

> Proposed Changes from Nov. 18 Meeting: -0.74 RCMP Lease
-0

.32 Legal Services reduction
+0

.
24 TRCC Grant

November 18 Summary Proposed -4.24% (RCMP related) + 2.42% (Operations) = 6.66%

> Proposed Changes for Dec.8 meeting: -0.47 RCMP vacancy rate
-1

.08 Patching work paid from reserve

December 8 Summarized Proposal: 3.77% (RCMP related) + 1.34% (Operations) = 5.11%

Additional Items to be paid from reserves

. An additional $600,000 in sidewalk repairs

. The replacement of the water tower decorative lights for a maximum of $200,
000

. $20,000 increase for tree planting

3
.Implications of the proposed rates

RCMP costs cannot be reduced any further without significant risk of creating a budget deficit in
this area. As it is now, if the wage increases and improved RCMP recruiting processes improve
the FTE utilization by more than 1 position in 2022 we may be over budget. Going forward, as
the FTE utilization increases, we will reduce the budgeted vacancy rate and increase taxes by a
corresponding amount. What is being proposed is a delay in RCMP costs, not a reduction, so in
for the 2023 budget Council will again be considering the implications of the increased RCMP
cost from 2022. It is also worth noting that the City will be facing another significant RCMP cost
increase when our population grows beyond 15,000. If the 2021 census shows our population
over 15,000 our RCMP contract cost will increase by 20% the following year. Otherwise, the
increase will not occur until after the 2025 census is complete, but it is a significant item we
should plan to fund over the near future term.

Over the last few years there has been a significant increase requested for operational patching
work. Administration is proposing that $160,000 in patching for one large street project be
funded through the reserves. While this one-time funding will reduce the required taxation level
for 2022, it will not resolve the issue if the need remains for future years.

Originally, the City requested a 2.5% increase for operations, which does not fully cover
confirmed wage increases and inflationary pressures. If the approved increase above the RCMP



cost is 1.3% or less, the City will be unable to address the growing infrastructure deficit and
instead will focus on maintaining operations and minimizing service level reductions.

While the City has a positive reserve balance this budget already draws upon the reserves in a
few different ways beyond funding capital projects. The City will need to draw an estimated $1.3
Million for RCMP related retro pay, with about $460,000 of that funding previously set aside for
that purpose. In addition, the Utility reserves will be subsidizing Sanitary Sewer services over
the next four years as the cost increase from debt financing is being implemented over three or
four years rather than all at once. The subsidy is estimated at $740,000 over a four year period
assuming annual increases of 3%.

4
.0ther potential Cost Reductions

Below you will find additional options for potential cost reductions, based largely on minimizing
the number of citizens impacted and the ease of implementing the changes.

Chapel Gallery - closing he Chapel Gallery would result in estimated net savings of $53,000
per year while still maintaining services at the Allen Sapp Gallery. This may also result in some
additional revenue from rental of the space to various community groups. The closure could
have a significant impact on a relatively small number of citizens.

RCMP Contract - One of our largest cost drivers is the RCMP policing contract, and the wage
increase negotiated by the federal government is the primary source of our tax increase this
year. Reducing our current FTE (full time equivalent) count by one officer would save around
1 % on our tax rate. Please note that we would need to provide 1 year"s notice to the RCMP for a
change of this nature, so it would not impact the current budget. It is very difficult to quantify the
impact of a 3% reduction in policing resources, but it may be best described a small impact on a
very large number of users.

Transit Reduction - eliminating regular transit service, not the Battlefords Handi-Bus service,
would result in savings of at least $200,000 annually on an ongoing basis. This would be a
potentially large impact on a small number of regular users.

5
.
Potential Revenue Increases

There remains a significant revenue opportunity with respect to improving the cost recovery of
our regional assets. The concept of two-tiered pricing, one rate for North Battleford residents
and another for non-residents, has been raised previously. This would improve the financial
results for the assets and in turn the City. Additional study would need to be undertaken to
better estimate the final cost and revenue impact and establish a timeline and full project plan as
this would be a significant project.

Additional Information

1
.To assist with any further discussion on investments, attached you will find the investment

bylaw approved in 2018. The bylaw states The primary is to protect the principal of the reserve



investments, while accounting for liquidity requirements and maximizing the returns to financially
benefit the taxpayers of the city in perpetuity'.

Section 3 of the bylaw notes the overall portfolio objectives are as follows:

. To increase the market value of the investment portfolio and preserve of the real (inflation
adjusted) value of the reserves as set aside for future capital projects;

. Sufficient planned liquidity to enable the City to fulfill annual withdrawal requirements,

regardless of economic and market conditions

To meet these objectives, the City currently recognizes interest and dividends for all of our
banking and investment accounts on a yearly basis as part of our normal operations. Assuming
we have positive returns on our investments, the City also funds capital projects when returns
exceed targeted levels.

2
. Administration has also suggested funding the water tower decorative lights from reserves.

We are however asking a potential funder if they might be interested in funding the project. We
do not expect a response for a few months, but if that funding is forthcoming, Administration
would not draw the funds from reserves as proposed. This would have no impact on the taxation
rate in either scenario

3
.Attached you will find additional financial statements information from the Twin Rivers Curling

Club for 2020-2021.

4
.Tree replacement reserve ask - originally there was a capital project ask for $20,000 per year

that was denied. Council instead suggested $20,000 per year in operating funding for tree
planting. The Director of Parks and Recreation would like to briefly revisit the discussion to
ensure clarity of direction and expected results.

Respectfully submitted,

Brent Nadon

Director of Finance

Approvals:

City Manager:
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INSTITUTIONAL INVESTMENT POLICY
CITY OF NORTH BATTLEFORD

SCHEDULE"A"

BYLAW NO. 2056

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 - OVERVIEW

SECTION 2 - ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

SECTION 3 - INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES
, ASSET MIX & SPENDING POLICY

SECTION 4 - RETURN AND RISK EXPECTATIONS

SECTION 5 - INVESTMENT MANAGER MONITORING AND CONTROL

SECTION 6 - ADMINISTRATION
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SECTION 1 - OVERVIEW & DEFINITIONS

PURPOSE OF STATEMENT

The purpose of this policy is to provide the prudent governance guidelines for the
investments of the City of North Battleford. The primary objective is to protect the
principal of the reserve investments, while accounting for liquidity requirements and
maximizing the returns to financially benefit the taxpayers of the city in perpetuity.

NVESTMENT & RISK PHILOSOPHY

An investment allocation has established the guidelines for the total portfolio, which over

the long-term should achieve the investment objectives of the City. These guidelines
were developed with the following considerations:

. The City has a long-term time horizon;

. Equity investments have historically provided greater returns than fixed income

investments over the long-term, although with greater short-term volatility (risk);
. Liquidity must be planned and prioritized in the event that the city requires funds for

specified purposes;
. Limits will be set regarding withdrawals from the portfolio to ensure the continued

growth of the portfolio;
. The investment return on the Funds is a function of capital market returns, asset

allocation, investment manager structure and individual managers;
» The long-term asset mix is the most important component of a portfolio's risk and

return;

. Diversification of asset classes
, implementation strategies, and security selection can

improve the risk and return characteristics of the portfolio;

» Market timing at the policy level is an inefficient strategy for consistently increasing
returns;

» Effective manager structure can improve the net returns and lower the risk of the
Funds.

n order to achieve long-term investment objectives, the portfolio must utilize assets that
Drovide uncertain returns such as Canadian equities, foreign equities and non-
government bonds. Institutional asset allocation, diversification and professional
nanagement will be the key tools utilized to manage the overall level of risk.

/Qt<J
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PRUDENT INVESTOR RULE

The Prudent Investor Rule requires a trustee to act prudently and with caution, discretion,

loyalty and care but does not restrict the assets in which a trustee can invest.
 The

Prudent Investor Rule makes use of Modern Portfolio Theory and applies the standard of
prudence to the entire portfolio rather than to individual investments. It identifies the
fiduciary's central consideration as the trade-off between risk and return as found in the
CFA Institute Standards of Practice Handbook.

SECTION 2 - ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES

The ultimate responsibility for approval of the Cities investment policy lies with City
Council. The most effective management and oversight of the investment portfolio is best
achieved through the delegation of its responsibilities to the city administration and
investment professionals.

CITY COUNCIL

It is the responsibility of City Council to approve the investment policy statement.

CITY ADMINISTRATION

It will be the responsibility of the City Manager and Director of Finance, or their

delegate(s) to ensure the investment policy is carried out to meet the needs of the city.
This includes communication, and scheduled meetings with the investment advisor and
monitoring of the investment mix to ensure compliance with the policy in achieving the
stated objectives.

INVESTMENT ADVISOR

The Investment Advisor is responsible to provide advice, research, guidance and
technical expertise to city administration to monitor the compliance of the investment

policy, monitor performance and provide a high level of service and reporting to the City
North Battleford, including any circumstances that could prevent the attainment of the
cities objectives. The advisor shall monitor the overall asset allocation of the portfolio as
well as the due diligence, selection and continuous monitoring of the investment
managers.

NVESTMENT MANAGER(S)

Professional portfolio managers will have full discretion in the day-to-day investment
.nanagement of the portion of the Fund for which they have been given responsibility,

subject to this policy and any amendments thereto. Investment managers will exercise

tilA



Bylaw No. 2056
_

5

the care, skill and diligence that can reasonably be expected of a prudent expert.
Investment managers must be vetted and portfolio assets retained in the custody of a
major Canadian investment firm. These managers will utilize professionally managed
segregated portfolios, pooled funds, exchange-traded funds to manage their portion of
the portfolio.

CUSTODIAN

The Custodian is responsible to fulfill the regular duties of a Custodian as required by law
and in accordance with any agreements between the city and custodian including
recording income and expenses of the portfolio, provide periodic portfolio statements of
all assets and transactions during the period and in conjunction with the Investment
Manager(s), periodically reconcile the list of assets, and provide the City with a copy of
such reconciliation. Finally, provide monthly, quarterly and annual performance
measurement data to assist in the monitoring process.

SECTION 3 - INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, ASSET MIX & SPENDING POLICY

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

The objective of the Cities investments is to provide long-term growth to support
municipal operations and/or capital expenditures to the benefit of the taxpayers.
Therefore, the overall portfolio objectives are:

. To increase the market value of the investment portfolio and preserve of the real
(inflation adjusted) value of the reserves as set aside for future capital projects;

. Sufficient planned liquidity to enable the City to fulfill annual withdrawal requirements,

regardless of economic and market conditions.

ASSET MIX

The asset mix provides the investment parameters and benchmark portfolio, which

should, over the long-term, achieve the investment objectives of the City.

n order to achieve the objectives, the City will operate two pools of investments. The
Short Term Pool includes assets specifically targeted for expenditure within a 5-year
Deriod as well as annual spending policy withdrawals from the long-term pool, not

mmediately required.

The Long Term Pool is for investment assets the city does not intend to utilize for a
Deriod of 5 years and longer. This pool is will be invested in such a way that it will
Bxperience greater volatility in the short term, leading to greater long term returns. The

<=Ub
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long-term pool will have a spending policy to fund capital expenditures on an annual
basis.

SHORT TERM POOL TARGET ALLOCATION LIMIT

The short term pool will have an asset allocation of 100% cash equivalents and/or fixed
income investments to match a spending requirement. This will include interest savings,

guaranteed investment certificates (GICs), and bonds with five years or less to maturity
rated AA or higher. Deposits and withdrawals from the Short Term Pool will be in
consultation with the City Manager, Director of Finance or delegate, in accordance with

the guidelines of the investment policy.

The short term pool will not be recognized in the evaluation of manager performance as
its objective will be focused towards capital preservation and liquidity, rather than long
term returns.

LONG TERM POOL TARGET ALLOCATION LIMITS & SPENDING POLICY

The long term portfolio is intended to provide greater long term returns in protecting the
cities investment reserves against the long term effects of inflation. To achieve this long
term investment goal, the long term pool will utilize an asset mix with a bias towards
equity investments. Risk is controlled by investing in a well diversified portfolio of asset
classes, through multiple investment managers and multiple geographic locations.

! Asset Class Minimum Neutral Maximum I
Short Term Bonds 2

.
50% 5

.
00% 5

.
00%

Global Fixed Incom e 22.50% 30.00% 45.00%

TOTAL FIXED NCOME 25.00% 35.00% 50.00% 1
i

Canadian Equities 20.00% 22.50% 25.00%

Global Equities 30.00% 37.50% 40.00%

Inflation Sensitive 0
.
00% 5

.
00% 10.00%

TOTAL EQUITES 50.00% 65.00% 75.00%

Below are the withdrawal limits for the city's investment portfolio:

. No more than 4
.0% of the portfolio value each year may be targeted for withdrawal

and utilized in the upcoming municipal budget for capital expenditures;
. Any withdrawal amounts that exceed 4.0% of the December 1®t balance in any year

must be approved by Council.

ddb
MJ
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SECTION 4 - RETURN EXPECTATIONS

ABSOLUTE RETURN EXPECTATIONS

The financial objective of the portfolio is to earn a rate of return in excess of 4.
0% on a

rolling five-year basis of the Bank of Canada target rate for inflation (2.0%).
 In order to

attain these returns while managing and controlling risk, the city will utilize multiple
investment managers within the portfolio. In this way added diversification is obtained for
the portion of the city>s assets that are invested in a portfolio that is expected to be more
volatile. Diversification is a tool to improve risk investment returns, to mitigate exposure to
any single risk and to enhance the return per unit of risk to the total return.

PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

For purposes of evaluating the performance of the pool and the Investment Managers the
primary time period for evaluation will be five years. Return objectives are net of fees and
include realized and unrealized capital gains or losses plus income from all sources.

Recognizing that the returns achieved over such shorter periods may vary significantly
from the relevant goals, the general trend of results relative to the goals and the
likelihood that satisfactory returns can reasonably be expected over five year moving
periods should form the basis for the evaluation of the long term pools performance.

RELATIVE RETURN OBJECTIVES

The relative return objectives for the portfolio are to achieve an annualized return
, after

investment management fees that exceed the return that would result from the passive
management of the Benchmark Portfolio on a five year moving average basis, assuming
annual rebalancing. This is an important guide in evaluating the performance of the cities
investments in comparison to overall capital markets.

INVESTMENT MANAGER MONITORING AND CONTROL

The primary focus is on the absolute long-term performance of the investment portfolio.

However, the short-term performance will be evaluated on an ongoing annual basis.
 This

short-term evaluation will be completed by the investment advisor and made by
comparing the actual performance of the portfolio (net of fees) with the returns from an
ndex portfolio constructed with reference to the benchmark asset allocation. The

massive index will be the evaluated at the current weightings of the portfolio represented
jy FTSE TMX Bond Universe (Fixed Income), S&P/TSX Composite (Canadian Equities)
and MSCI World Index (Global Equities).

cU/b
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SECTION 5 - INVESTMENT MANAGER MONITORING & CONTROL

COMPLIANCE REPORTING

On a quarterly basis, the investment advisor(s) will provide a report for City
Administration and Council to identify the current asset allocation to ensure compliance
with the investment policy. The report will outline overall allocation, security holdings,
and performance of the portfolio.

On a monthly basis, the investment advisor(s) will provide a report for corporate
accounting and audit purposes to outline security holdings, transactions, valuations,

income and performance of the portfolio.

PERMITTED INVESTMENTS

Investments shall not be made in investment categories other than those mentioned
without an amendment of the Investment Policy Statement. The following investments
may be made either via segregated holdings of a professional manager or through
pooled or mutual funds:

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents will consist of interest savings accounts
or guaranteed investment certificates (GICs). All fixed income securities with less than
12 months to maturity are considered a cash equivalent.

Fixed Income: The Bond portfolio must have a minimum weighted average rating of A by
DBRS or an equivalent rating by another recognized rating agency. Bonds rated BBB
may not represent more than 20% of the bond portfolio. Up to 20% of the fixed income
allocation may be held in bonds denominated in non-Canadian currency or 50% in pooled
funds of foreign bonds hedged to Canadian Currency. Bonds rated below investment
grade may be held in investment pools only, not as segregated holdings, to a maximum
of 10% of the overall portfolio.

Equities: Equities include common stocks, preferred stocks and limited liability income
trusts. Foreign equity is included to provide diversification to reduce the overall risk profile
of the equity portfolio and to enhance returns.

Derivatives: The use of derivatives is permitted to replicate a security or to hedge foreign
currency exposure utilized in professionally managed pooled funds (mutual funds).

(J/ÿb
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INVESTMENT CONSTRAINTS & DIVERSIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investment in the money market instruments of a single issuer may not exceed 10% of
the market value of the total reserve portfolio, except for the securities of the Federal and

Provincial governments of Canada and US Federal government. Investments Savings
accounts of the custodian are also permissible.Fixed IncomeInvestments in the fixed income securities of a single issuer may not exceed 10% of the
market value of the Fixed Income portion of the Fund, except for securities of the Federal
and Provincial governments of Canada and US Federal government.

Investments in the equity securities of a single issuer may not exceed 10% of the market
value of the Equity portion and multiple managers must be utilized.

Total Portfolio

Investments in any single corporate issuer may not exceed 10% of the total portfolio
value.

CONFLICTS BETWEEN THE INVESTMENT POLICY AND POOLED FUND
INVESTMENT POLICIES

While this investment policy is intended to guide the management of the Fund, it is

recognized that, there may be instances where there is a conflict between the city's
investment policy and the investments of a professionally managed pooled (mutual) fund.

After a review of the pooled (mutual) funds investment policy and agreement with the City
Manager, Director of Finance and Financial Manager, an investment can be made in

such a pooled fund to improve the diversification, risk management and/or return
potential of the overall portfolio. A maximum weighting of 15% of the total portfolio can
be held in these investments. Any amount beyond 15% would require approval from
council or an amendment to the investment policy.

MONITORING, SELECTING & REPLACING INVESTMENT MANAGERS

From time to time, the Investment Advisor may recommend adding investment managers
or replacing an investment manager from the portfolio. Manager selection and
replacement must occur with a significant amount of due diligence including:

. Investment managers firm overview, staff longevity and assets under management;

. Investment managers overall investment style;

Equities
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. Diversification
, risk and return improvements to the overall portfolio;

. Investment performance compared to respective benchmarks.

Investment managers may be replaced due to consecutive performance lagging the
benchmark, personnel changes within the firm or superior performance of a similar asset
class of another firm/investment manager. Manager replacement occurs without the

approval of council, unless there is a change to the overall investment policy.

SECTION 6 - ADMINISTRATION

INVESTMENT POLICY REVIEW

On an annual basis, the Investment Advisor and City Administration may determine
changes are required to the Investment Policy. If no changes are required, no further

action is required. Any changes to the Investment Policy must be approved by Council
due to:

. Changes in general economic conditions;

. The possible effect of inflation or deflation;

. Needs for liquidity, regularity of income and preservation of capital;

. Changes in expectations of long-term returns and risks associated with the different
asset classes of investments;

. Changes to risk tolerance;

. Expectations of the city
's future cash flows;

. New investment products; and

. Any practical issues that arise from the application of the Investment Policy.

NVESTMENT REVIEW MEETINGS

The Investment Advisor(s) shall meet with the City Manager, Director of Finance
,

rinancial Manager and other delegates at least semi-annually to provide a review of
portfolio transactions, portfolio performance, capital markets outlook and other relevant
matters. From time to time, North Battleford City Council may request meetings with the
investment advisors as well.

SELECTION OF AN INVESTMENT ADVISOR

The Investment Advisor must have a demonstrated reputation for expertise in institutional
portfolio management, provide proactive advice, high quality client service and
competitive investment management/custodial services. The investment consultant must
De associated with a reputable Canadian firm
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INDEPENDENT	AUDITORS'	REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Twin Rivers Curling Club Inc.
North Battleford, Saskatchewan

Qualified	Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Twin Rivers Curling Club Inc., which comprise the
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Twin Rivers
Curling Club Inc. as at June 30, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis	for	Qualified	Opinion

Twin Rivers Curling Club Inc. derives revenue from fundraising activities the completeness of which is not
susceptible of satisfactory audit verification.  Accordingly, our audit of these revenues was limited to the
amounts recorded in the records of the organization and we were not able to determine whether any
adjustments might be necessary to fundraising revenues, excess of revenue over expenses and net assets for
the fiscal 2021 and fiscal 2020 years.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’	Responsibilities	for	the	Audit	of	the
Financial	 Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Twin Rivers Curling Club Inc. in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

Responsibilities	of	Management	and	Those	Charged	with	Governance	for	the Financial	Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Twin Rivers Curling Club Inc.’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization’s financial reporting process.

Page 2



Auditors'	Responsibilities	for	the	Audit	of	the	Financial	Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization‘s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organization‘s ability to continue as a going concern.  If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as a going
concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants
North Battleford, Saskatchewan
October 24, 2021
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TWIN	RIVERS	CURLING	CLUB	INC.
STATEMENT	OF	OPERATIONS	

FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2021

2021 2020

REVENUE
Advertising $ 36,400 $ 34,009
Bonspiel operations 793 22,387
Commission 9,071
Curling fees 59,791 105,164
Donations and fundraising 5,000 5,883
Facility rental 3,902 10,779
Grants 11,159 23,223
Interest 211 1,685
Restaurant operations 13,714 13,143
Government wage subsidy (Note 10) 48,242
CEBA loan debt forgiveness (Note 5) 20,000
Other 405 10,513

199,617 235,857

EXPENSES
Advertising and promotion 7,534 3,143
Amortization 19,738 16,797
Bad debt 1,306
Bonspiel operations 394 15,536
Building fund 25,000 25,000
Business taxes, licenses and memberships 156 246
Curling program and event fees 242 4,120
Interest and bank charges 2,366  3,324
Member discount 1,195 2,875
Office 8,373 10,300
Professional fees 9,417 16,916
Repairs and maintenance 5,172 8,462
Restaurant operations 1,634 1,553
Salaries and wages 58,846 59,490
Sub-contracts 45,857
Supplies 1,571 2,093
Telephone 144 3,455
Travel, meetings and conventions 126
Utilities 89,959 115,338

231,741 335,937

DEFICIT	OF	REVENUE	OVER	EXPENSES $ (32,124) $ (100,080)

See accompanying notes
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TWIN	RIVERS	CURLING	CLUB	INC.
STATEMENT	OF	CHANGES	IN	NET	ASSETS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2021

General Invested	in Restricted
fund capital	assets funds 2021 2020

NET	ASSETS at beginning of year $ (94,994) $ 93,775 $ 284,656 $ 283,437 $ 383,517

Deficit of revenue over expenses (32,124) (32,124) (100,080)

Amortization 19,738 (19,738) NIL

FUND	TRANSFERS 275,068 9,588 (284,656) NIL

NET	ASSETS	at end of year $ 167,688 $ 83,625 $ NIL $ 251,313 $ 283,437

See accompanying notes
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TWIN	RIVERS	CURLING	CLUB	INC.
STATEMENT	OF	CASH	FLOWS

FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2021

2021 2020

CASH	USED	BY	OPERATING	ACTIVITIES
Deficit of revenue over expenses $ (32,124) $ (100,080)
Items not requiring cash

Amortization 19,738 16,797
Debt forgiveness (20,000)

(32,386) (83,283)
Net change in non-cash working capital

Decrease (increase) in receivables 8,510 (3,832)
Decrease in prepaids 25,000
Decrease in payables (9,106) (3,494)

24,404 (7,326)

(7,982) (90,609)

CASH	PROVIDED	BY	FINANCING	ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term debt 20,000 40,000

CASH	USED	BY	INVESTING	ACTIVITIES
Purchase of tangible capital assets (9,588) (53,708)

INCREASE	(DECREASE)	IN	CASH	AND
CASH	EQUIVALENTS 2,430 (104,317)

CASH	AND	CASH	EQUIVALENTS
at beginning of year 193,514 297,831

CASH	AND	CASH	EQUIVALENTS
at end of year (Note 9) $ 195,944 $ 193,514

See accompanying notes
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TWIN	RIVERS	CURLING	CLUB	INC.
NOTES	TO	THE	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2021

1. STATUTES	OF	INCORPORATION	AND	NATURE	OF	ACTIVITIES

Twin Rivers Curling Club Inc. is incorporated under the Saskatchewan Non-Profit Corporation
Act, 1995.  The organization strives to promote and grow the sport of curling in a social and
competitive environment in the City of North Battleford and surrounding area.

2. SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations and are in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.  The more significant accounting policies that have been
adopted are as follows:

(a) Fund Accounting

The Twin Rivers Curling Club Inc. utilizes fund accounting.

The general fund accounts for the current operations and administrative activities and
reports resources which are not restricted.

The capital fund is a restricted fund that reflects the equity in capital assets of the
organization after taking into consideration any associated long term debt. Expenses
consist primarily of amortization of capital assets.

The restricted fund accounts for funds that are externally or internally restricted.
Transfers from such fund will be used for the purpose specified by the Board of Directors.

(b) Revenue Recognition

The organization follows the restricted fund method of accounting for externally restricted
contributions.  Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the operating fund
when received or receivable if the amounts to be received can be reasonably measured
and ultimate collection is reasonably assured.  Restricted contributions are recognized as
revenue of the appropriate fund when received or receivable.  Restricted contributions for
use in operations are deferred and recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred.

Advertising, restaurant revenue and curling fees are recognized as they are earned over
the course of the curling season when received or receivable if the amounts to be received
can be reasonably measured and collection is reasonably assured.

(c) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost.
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TWIN	RIVERS	CURLING	CLUB	INC.
NOTES	TO	THE	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2021

2. SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	(continued)

(d) Amortization

Amortization is provided on a declining balance basis using the following estimates of
useful life:

     Equipment 20 %
Computer 55 %

Tangible capital assets acquired during the year are amortized at one-half the annual rate.
Amortization expense is reported in the capital fund.

(e) Contributed services

Volunteers contribute a significant amount of time each year to Twin Rivers Curling Club
Inc.  Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value of contributed services, they are
not recognized in the financial statements.

(f) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period.  These estimates are reviewed periodically and
adjustments are made to income as appropriate in the period they become known.
Significant estimates include the useful life of tangible capital assets.

3. TANGIBLE	CAPITAL	ASSETS
2021 2020

Accumulated
Cost amortization Net Net

Equipment $ 153,545 $ 105,950 $ 47,595 $ 48,707
Computer 14,875 14,845 30 68
Leasehold improvements 71,347 35,347 36,000 45,000

$ 239,767 $ 156,142 $ 83,625 $ 93,775

4. BANK	INDEBTEDNESS

The organization has an operating line of credit of $30,000 which bears interest at 4.95% per
annum of which Nil has been drawn as of  June 30, 2021 (2020 - Nil).
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TWIN	RIVERS	CURLING	CLUB	INC.
NOTES	TO	THE	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2021

5. LONG	TERM	LIABILITIES

2021 2020
Long term debt

(a) CEBA loan $ 40,000 $ 40,000

(a) The CEBA loan is a government guaranteed, interest-free loan that requires no repayment
until December 31, 2022.  If paid prior to that date, $20,000 of the loan will be forgiven.
Any unpaid amounts at January 1, 2023 will be converted to a 3-year term loan at 5%
interest with interest-only monthly payments required until December 31, 2025.  The loan
is not expected to be recalled in the next year.

6. COMMITMENTS

In 2016 the organization entered into a fundraising commitment with the City of North
Battleford for the construction of the Credit Union Cuplex facility.  The organization agreed to
pay $25,000 to the city per year until 2026.  $50,000 of the commitment remains at  June 30,
2021.  

7. FINANCIAL	INSTRUMENTS

(a) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for
the other party by failing to discharge its obligation.  The company provides credit to
customers in the normal course of operations.  It carries out, on a continuing basis, credit
checks on its customers and maintains provisions for potential credit losses.  The company
minimizes its credit risk by concluding transactions with a large number of customers.  

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting its
obligations associated with financial liabilities.  The company is exposed to liquidity risk
arising primarily from the long-term debt.  The company's ability to meet obligations
depends on the receipt of funds from its operations and other related sources. 

The carrying value of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximates their fair
values because of the short-term maturities of these items.

8. COMPARATIVE	FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current period's
financial statement preparation.
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TWIN	RIVERS	CURLING	CLUB	INC.
NOTES	TO	THE	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2021

9. CASH	FLOW	INFORMATION

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances on deposit and investments in
money market instruments less short term indebtedness.  Cash and cash equivalents included
in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:

2021 2020

Cash $ 195,944 $ 193,514

10. GOVERNMENT	ASSISTANCE

The Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS) provides a subsidy of remuneration paid by an
eligible employer.  CEWS eligibility is dependent upon a revenue or cash flow decline.

The federal government has extended CEWS to October 23, 2021.

There is no known contingent liability for repayment however the amounts could become
subject to review by Canada Revenue Agency.

11. SUBSEQUENT	EVENT

In January 2020, the World Health Organization has declared the outbreak of a novel
coronavirus (COVID-19) as a “Public Health Emergency of International Concern,” which
continues to spread throughout the world and has adversely impacted global commercial
activity and contributed to significant declines and volatility in financial markets.  The extent of
COVID19’s effect on the organization’s operational and financial performance will depend on
future developments, including the duration, spread and intensity of the pandemic, all of which
are uncertain and difficult to predict.  The rapid development and fluidity of this situation make
it impossible to ascertain the ultimate material adverse impact of the coronavirus outbreak.
Nevertheless, the outbreak presents uncertainty and risk with respect to the organization, its
performance, and its financial results.
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Introduction 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the diminished fiscal environment, the City experienced a 
challenging year. Difficult decisions were required to ensure operational efficiencies were identified 
which included a reduction in staff. The establishment of these efficiencies enabled the City to 
minimize the impact to the taxpayer over the last few years. While the City continually seeks to 
implement efficiencies as part of our everyday practices, the decisions going forward focus largely on 
reducing expenses and increasing revenues. Staffing capacity did not increase in 2021, and 
Administration is recommending that the City hold the line once more in 2022.    

In 2022 and beyond we face not only the uncertainty and cost of a Covid-19 recovery, but a significant 
increase in ongoing operational cost for policing due to a five-year retroactive contract between the 
federal government and the RCMP. The estimated full cost increase for the City will be just over 
$1,000,000 or a 6.94% tax increase. After considerable effort by the City to mitigate the impact, the 
estimated ongoing cost increase for the 2022 budget year is $737,534 per year, equivalent to a 4.98% 
increase in property taxes. As there was no operational increase included in property taxes last year, it 
is also proposed that an additional 2.5% increase be included to provide for required wage increases 
and the rapidly rising general inflationary pressures projected for 2022. We are also proposing a 4% 
increase for Waste Management operations due to contract increases over the last two years. 

We have worked to mitigate tax increases for 2022 beyond the RCMP contract. For example, we are 
not asking for an additional 1% increase for capital projects as was approved for the last two years, nor 
are we increasing the Recreation & Cultural Capital Facilities Levy. In addition, we have delayed the 
planned purchase of a number of vehicles due to significant increases in truck purchase prices.   

With respect to Utilities, the City is proposing a 3% general increase. While the multi-million-dollar 
Sanitary Sewer Force Main Project is nearing completion, the project related borrowing is the driving 
factor behind the requested rate increase. Having said that, a significant one-year increase is required 
to fund the principal and interest payments for the Sewer Force Main Project going forward, the City is 
instead proposing a phased in approach which will require additional increases over the next three 
years.   

The 3% increase in Utility Services also includes the City’s planned capital reserve needs in the next five 
years to fund required infrastructure repair and replacement. Further, Utility Services also faces the 
same wage increases and inflationary pressures that are impacting the property tax side. The other 
alternative is to reduce or eliminate services. This decision was made in a fiscally responsible manner 
with the intention of strengthening our financial reserves, to reduce the exposure to rising interest 
rates and to deliberately minimize the amount of future borrowing required in the next five years. 
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For the upcoming year, the City will: 

 focus on finding operational and cost efficiencies within City operations through continuous 
improvement; 

 improve planning for future capital needs and costs so that funding can be set aside for future 
infrastructure renewals as current reserves are insufficient to meet future needs; 

 continue investing in infrastructure through the Underground Pipe and Asphalt Replacement 
Program, which has a combined budget of $3.2 million for 2022; and 

 To improve citizen engagement and understanding of the City’s financial state through 
increased communication, education, and outreach through methods such as citizen surveys 
and open houses. 

 
Overall, the economic climate for the City, the province and even the world remains uncertain.  The 
City is focused on maintaining citizen services, minimizing cost increases and recovering from the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic over the last two years.   

 
2021 Fiscal Year 
 

The City was just finishing off a second consecutive difficult fiscal year in 2020 and planned to hold the 
line on expenses and taxation in 2021.  The Covid-19 pandemic has continued to negatively impact our 
operations, especially Parks & Recreation Services. The City has also experienced significant delays on 
sourcing some materials for capital project.  Based on our recent experiences in working through the 
pandemic, the City has been able to take advantage of available pandemic related funding while 
considerably mitigating the continual decline in citizen driven revenues.  
 

2022 Budget and Beyond 
Recreation & Cultural Capital Facilities Levy  

The Recreation & Cultural Capital Facilities Levy (RCCF) was started in 2006 and applies to all property 
owners in North Battleford. The RCCF levy now generates approximately $1.499 million annually to pay 
for the debt associated with the construction of the CUplex, Curling Rink and the Dekker Center. One of 
the financial challenges is to communicate the full picture on payments and levies taken on the CUplex. 
The anticipated RCCF levy for 2022 is $1,499,600, with total interest and principal payments estimated 
to be $1,442,847 for the year. The schedule highlighting the total amounts paid and received is as 
follows: 
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Year Levied

Loan principal 
and interest 
repayments Surplus / (Deficit) Total

2006 381,588              -                                 381,588                  381,588          
2007 381,603              -                                 381,603                  763,190          
2008 776,729              -                                 776,729                  1,539,919       
2009 773,656              -                                 773,656                  2,313,575       
2010 772,172              -                                 772,172                  3,085,747       
2011 1,367,987          45,471                     1,322,516               4,408,264       
2012 1,375,274          1,524,849               (149,575) 4,258,689       
2013 1,354,977          2,141,801               (786,825) 3,471,864       
2014 1,365,489          2,096,283               (730,794) 2,741,070       
2015 1,416,413          2,054,058               (637,644) 2,103,426       
2016 1,453,396          2,123,240               (669,843) 1,433,583       
2017 1,440,275          2,305,793               (865,518) 568,065          
2018 1,352,446          2,250,343               (897,898) (329,833)
2019 1,462,714          2,193,313               (730,599) (1,060,432)
2020 1,463,227          2,139,062               (675,835) (1,736,268)
2021 1,499,600          2,079,006               (579,406) (2,315,674)
2022 1,499,600          1,442,847               56,753                     (2,258,920)
2023 1,499,600          998,199                   501,402                  (1,757,519)
2024 1,499,600          974,422                   525,179                  (1,232,340)
2025 1,499,600          949,050                   550,550                  (681,790)
2026 1,499,600          924,886                   574,715                  (107,075)
2027 1,499,600          899,094                   600,506                  493,431          
2028 1,499,600          873,973                   625,628                  1,119,059       
2029 1,499,600          849,429                   650,172                  1,769,230       
2030 1,499,600          824,513                   675,087                  2,444,317       
2031 1,499,600          799,626                   699,974                  3,144,291       
2032 1,499,600          325,835                   1,173,765               4,318,056       

Recreation long-term borrowing

 

The above table demonstrates that the levy being generated annually will be sufficient to pay the 
annual CUplex debt cumulatively by the end of 2026. The increased debt room will allow for future 
recreational capital planning to be accomplished. 
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2022 Budget – Targeted Savings and Efficiencies  

The 2022 Budget includes targeted dollar savings of $200,000 on staffing vacancies. Given previous 
staffing reductions, our focus in 2022 will be on process improvements and efficiencies, which 
generally result in increased workload capacity rather than bottom line cost reductions.  Due to Covid-
19 operational impacts and some key staff changes, a number of opportunities noted from the 
previous budget will continue to be followed up on and completed in 2022.   Some of the improvement 
and efficiency opportunities are noted below: 

a. Landfill Process Improvements – ensuring the current landfill entrance process captures as 
much revenue as possible.  This process is almost complete and will help ensure we do not lose 
any expected revenue going forward in 2022.  

b. Septic Receiving Station – finish installing the septic receiving station at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and a move away from the current honour system.  This process is still 
underway and will be complete in 2022.  

c. Energy and process assessment – the City undertook an energy audit of the CUplex and grant 
applications were submitted for a major solar project.  We await funding confirmation from the 
federal government.  In 2022 we plan to perform an energy audit of City Hall. Process 
assessments and improvements remain a continuous priority throughout the City. 

d. Property Tax and Utility Revenue – given that 2021 was a reassessment year, additional work 
will be required to ensure all properties are paying the correct balances per the City’s bylaws, 
with a focus on applying correct assessments and proper and consistent utility billing. 

e. Partnership Opportunities – continue to pursue partnership opportunities with local groups and 
municipalities to reduce overall costs for all. 

f. Utility Meters – given the delay in fully implementing new electronic water meters, work will 
continue through early 2022 that will allow improved customer service and greater accuracy 
and controls within the water billing process.  

 
2022 Budget – Long Term Planning 

Within the 2022 Budget, $135,596 has been identified to be set aside into a separate reserve/bank 
account to either purchase new equipment (in the near future) or to replace funds drawn in previous 
years.  This is part of City’s effort to move away from use of outside funding or borrowing and to 
eventually become self-sufficient in funding infrastructure as the need arises. The three reserve 
transfers being made in 2022 are as follows: 

1. 2019 Waste Management Loader Purchase $44,564 per year over 10 years at 6% interest 
2. 2021 Fire Department Pumper Truck Purchase - $300,000. The anticipated repayment amount 

is $81,520.77 per year over 10 years at 6% interest. 
3. 2021 CSO Vehicle purchase at $70,000 at $9,511 per year for 10 years at 6% interest.  
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Administration is also proposing a financial reserve study in 2022 with a $10,000 estimated cost for the 
purpose of reviewing current reserve balances, policies and regulations and providing best practice 
guidance on a future reserve strategy that meets City needs.  
 

Reserve Transfers In 

Item 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
Loader Re-
Payment 

$44,564 $44,564 $44,564 $44,564 $44,564 $44,564 

Pumper Truck  $300,000  $81,521 $81,521 $81,521 $81,521 
CSO vehicle   $9,511 $9,511 $9,511 $9,511 
Total $344,564 $44,564 $135,596 $135,596 $135,596 $135,596 

 

Reserve Transfers Out 

Item 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
Pumper Truck  $300,000     
CSO vehicle  $70,000     
Total  $370,000     

 

Final Fleet Reserve Balance 

Item 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
Open Balance 
 

($328,000) ($16,564) ($342,000) ($206,404) ($70,808) $64,788 

Transfers In $344,564 $44,564 $135,596 $135,596 $135,596 $135,596 
Transers out  ($370,000)     
Ending Balance ($16,564) ($342,000) ($206,404) ($70,808) $64,788 $200,384 

 

The key to achieving the goal in the above table will be implementing a disciplined approach to 
repaying the amounts drawn down from the capital fund through increases to existing revenue 
streams. 
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Divisional Alignment of the City 
 
The City is organized into two major funds (divisions), each with its own separate operating and capital 
budget. The City also has a third fund, the Underground Pipe and Asphalt Replacement (UPAR) Fund, 
which was established in 2015. The revenues and expenditures of the UPAR Fund are separately 
accounted for. The Funds (divisions) include: 
 
 General Fund 
 Utilities Fund   
 Underground Pipe and Asphalt Replacement (UPAR) Fund 

 
General Fund – Operating 

 
The General Fund Operating includes the revenue and expenses associated with delivering basic City 
services such as Administrative Services, City Operations, Parks & Recreation Service, Policing, Fire 
Protection, and Solid Waste Management. The General Fund receives various revenue streams such as 
general taxation based on assessed property values, government transfers, grants and taxes in lieu 
from Government agencies.   

 
General Fund – Capital 
 
The General Fund Capital includes the capital expenses associated with capital purchases of the 
General Fund, whether that be betterments/replacement of existing assets or purchase of new assets. 
The General Fund Capital is planned with a minimum five-year horizon with assets funded through 
reserves (savings) or debt over a minimum five-year period. 

 
For comparison purposes, the financial tables that follow report on proposed 2022 Budget amounts 
along with 2021 actual and budget figures and 2020 actual figures. Please be aware that the 2021 
actual and budget figures were significantly impacted by the pandemic.    
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General Fund – 2022 Operating Budget compared to Budget 2021 
 
City of North Battleford
General Fund- Consolidated Statement of Operations 
Forecast for the year ended December 31, 2022

% change 2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
Revenues as of Nov 8, 2021

     Taxes and Other Unconditional Revenue 23,398,486$      22,808,669$      21,233,794$               23,363,611$      
     Fees and Charges 4,112,900          3,915,298          3,839,777                   3,701,874          
     Conditional Grants 2,456,401          1,714,009          2,443,770                   4,637,199          
     Tangible Capital Asset Sales - Gain -                         -                         12,058                        14,812               
     Lot Options 3,000                 3,000                 968,528                      246,817             
     Investment Income and Commissions 312,500             332,500             335,774                      530,516             
     Other Revenues 1,394,311          1,399,775          2,231,216                   2,861,355          

Total Revenues 5% 31,677,598        30,173,251        31,064,917                 35,356,185        

Expenses, less amortization

     General Government Services 7% 4,707,112          4,381,202          3,300,031                   4,518,940          
     Policing Services 14% 5,991,515          5,273,614          2,476,682                   5,253,760          
     Fire & Protective Services 4% 3,313,895          3,173,957          2,582,476                   3,222,448          
     Operations Services 7% 5,288,265          4,955,669          3,976,264                   7,098,192          
     Waste Management Services 4% 1,693,526          1,627,133          1,174,848                   1,855,574          
     Planning and Development Services -6% 1,436,156          1,519,937          1,007,533                   1,454,841          
     Parks & Recreation Services 6% 6,701,070          6,299,722          4,522,380                   7,685,224          

Total Expenses 7% 29,131,538        27,231,235        19,040,214                 31,088,979        

Capital Grant -                         -                         -                                 827,725             

2,546,059          2,942,016          12,024,703                 5,094,932          

Debt principal due in 2022 (1,828,289)         (2,424,426)         (2,293,609)                 (2,434,280)         
Debt issue and reserve transfer 1,663,126          1,999,975          -                                 2,246,111          
Transfers to Reserves (135,596)            (44,564)              -                                 (44,564)              
Capital Expenditure (2,245,300)         (2,473,000)         (1,763,388)                 (4,862,198)         
Projected Financial Position 0$                      0$                      7,967,706$                 0$                      

Surplus (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenses before 
Other Capital Contributions
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General Fund Projected Revenue 2022 
 
The General Fund Revenue is funded from a variety of sources not solely from property taxation. In 
fact, general property taxation only accounts for approximately 55% of the projected revenue collected 
by the General Fund in 2022. The balance of the revenue comes from provincial transfer 
payments/grants, user pay fees and charges at City facilities, conditional grants, curbside garbage 
collection revenues, and others. The following chart illustrates where the funds are expected to come 
from in 2022. 
 

 
  
    General Fund Budget Revenue for 2022 compared to Budget Revenue 2021 

2022 2021 %Change
Property Tax Revenue Base 17,539,560$               16,498,570$            6.3             

Other Unconditiona l  Revenue 5,858,926$                 6,310,100$              7.2-             

Fees  and Charges 4,112,900$                 3,915,298$              5.0             

Condi tional  Grants 2,456,401$                 1,714,009$              43.3           

Land Options 3,000$                        3,000$                     -              

Investment Income 312,500$                    332,500$                 6.0-             

Other Revenues 1,394,311$                 1,399,775$              0.4-             

31,677,597$               30,173,251$            5.0              
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Property Tax Revenue Base – 7.48% increase in Property Tax to both residential and commercial 
property tax levies, abatements, penalties on arrears and trailer levies. This tax increase is implanted to 
fund a significant policing cost increase and to cover some of the increased wage and material costs 
forecast for 2022.  
 
Other Unconditional Revenue – includes funds from the Municipal Operating Grant from the province, 
Saskatchewan Property Management Corporation, SaskPower surcharge, and North Battleford Housing 
Authority. 
 
Fees and Charges – includes RCMP criminal record checks, Fire Services Fees, Bylaw fines (local and 
provincial), Aviation Fuel, Cemetery Fees, Waste disposal fees, Building Licenses, Building Permits, Fees 
from Development Agreements, Rent from City property, Recreational Fees, and Gallery Fees. 
 
Conditional Grants – includes a Provincial Grant for Policing, Waste Management, Handi Bus, Airport 
and Parks & Recreation Services Grants. 
 
Investment Income – includes interest earned on cash reserves of the City. 
 
Other Revenues - includes facility rent from the RCMP building and revenue from the residential 
garbage roll out cart program. 
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General Fund Projected Expenses 2022 
Departmental Expenses 
 
The revenue of the General fund is used to fund the general costs of City Hall, Planning & Development 
services, Fire and Protective services, the RCMP, City Operations, Waste Management services, and 
Parks & Recreation services. 
 
The following chart illustrates where the General funds are expected to be spent in 2022 by 
department. 
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2022 Expense by Type compared to 2021 Budget 
The following chart illustrates where the General funds are expected to be spent in 2022 by expense 
type. 
 

 
 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
as of Nov 8, 2021  

General Fund Expenses - Budget 2022
Council remuneration and travel 302,693$           295,511$                 221,658$                  264,139$              
Wages and benefits 11,794,840        11,369,489              8,470,233                 9,968,264             
Professional/Contractual services 10,025,092        8,857,803                5,059,962                 7,790,083             
Subscription/Memberships 214,181             189,643                   87,149                      144,002                
Utilities 1,829,886          1,705,573                1,335,790                 1,769,143             
Maintenance, materials and supplies 2,134,542          2,019,312                2,103,110                 2,812,629             
Travel 73,899               63,203                     7,283                        19,176                  
Amortization -                        -                               -                               5,123,517             
Interest 627,984             704,757                   451,703                    705,601                
Allowance for uncollectibles -                        -                               1                               182,824                
Insurance 685,000             577,800                   562,740                    546,229                
Medical 6,030                 3,500                       2,160                        1,120                    
Grants and contributions 1,324,792          1,332,044                689,402                    1,399,328             
Other 112,600             112,600                   49,023                      362,923                

Total General Fund Expenses 29,131,538$      27,231,235$            19,040,214$             31,088,979$          
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      General Fund 2022 Budget - Professional/Contractual Expenses by Department 
 

 
 
General Fund Professional/Contractual 2022 Budget compared to 2021 Budget 
 

Total budgeted professional contractual expenses 2021 $8,857,803
Budget 2022 Movement compared to Budget 2021:
General Government                143,453 
Policing Services                736,759 
Fire & Protective Services                  89,833 
Operations & Maintenance Services                158,349 
Waste Management Services                  16,330 
Planning & Development Services                    5,000 
Parks & Recreation Services                  17,564 

Proposed Budget 2022 $10,025,092
For details of movement, see the individual departments below.  
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General Fund 2022 Budget - Maintenance/Materials/Supplies by Department 

 

 
 
 
General Fund Maintenance/Materials/Supplies 2022 Budget compared to 2021 Budget 
 

Total budgeted Maintenance/Materials/Supplies expenses 2021 $2,019,312
Budget 2022 Movement compared to Budget 2021:
General Government Services                      35,001 
Policing Services                     (12,000)
Fire & Protective Services                       (7,310)
Operations & Maintenance Services                      83,100 
Waste Management Services                      13,508 
Planning & Development Services                       (2,200)
Parks & Recreation Services                        5,130 

Proposed Budget 2022 $2,134,542  
For details of movement, see the individual departments below. 
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General Fund – Projected 2022 Capital Spend by Department (Funded) 
 

 
 

 

General Fund - 2022 Capital Spend compared to 2021 (Funded)

2022 2021

General Governmental Services 568,000$                     265,000$                       
Policing Services
Fire and Protective Services 670,000                         
Operations Services 1,128,000                    620,000                         
Waste Management Services 45,000                         
Planning and Development Services 120,000                       50,000                           
Parks & Recreation Services 384,300                       868,000                         

2,245,300$                  2,473,000$                     
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Capital Projects funded by Existing Gas Tax 
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Utilities Fund – Operating 
 
The Utilities Fund Operating includes the revenue and costs associated with delivering potable water to 
residents and the transporting/processing of sanitary sewer. The Utility Fund revenues rely solely on 
fees from consumers, whether that be residential, commercial, or industrial city users. 

 
Utilities Fund – Capital 
The Utilities Fund Capital includes purchases whether that be betterments/replacement of existing 
assets or purchase of new assets.  The Utilities Fund Capital is also planned with a minimum five-year 
horizon with assets funded through reserves (savings).  Examples of the type of investments include 
equipment, infrastructure, and plants (or the associated betterment).   
 
Utilities Fund - 2022 Operating Budget compared to Budget 2021 
 
City of North Battleford
Utilities Fund - Consolidated Statement of Operations 
Forecast for the year ended December 31, 2022

% change 2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
Revenues as of Nov 8, 2021

Fees and charges 7,714,479$        7,505,258$        6,412,302$                 7,549,100$        
Conditional grants -                         -                         -                                 -                         
Investment income and commissions 16,000               8,730                 18,792                        17,725               

Total Revenue 3% 7,730,479          7,513,988          6,431,094                   7,566,824          

Expenses, less amortization

Water services  5% 3,418,170          3,264,871          3,249,040                   4,185,235          
Sanitary sewer services 11% 2,897,284          2,605,649          2,124,450                   3,719,439          

Total Expenses 8% 6,315,454          5,870,520          5,373,490                   7,904,674          

Capital Grant 3,440,340          4,288,340          190,794                      267,514             

4,855,365          5,931,807          1,248,398                   (70,335)              

Debt principal due in 2022 (1,288,871)         (955,363)            (875,749)                    (868,718)            
Debt issue and reserve transfer 4,679,016          3,014,066          -                                 939,054             
Capital Expenditure (8,245,510)         (7,990,510)         (6,112,580)                 (2,916,767)         

Projected Financial Position 0                        0                        372,649$                    0                        

Surplus (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenses before 
Other Capital Contributions
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Utility Fund - 2022 Projected Revenue compared to 2021 Budget 
 

Utilities Revenue 
Projected 2022 

Revenue 
Budget 2021 Revenue Variance % Change

Water Fees $3,844,406 $3,742,306 $102,100 2.73

Sanitary Sewer Fees 3,886,073 3,771,681 114,392 3.03

Total Revenues $7,730,479 $7,513,988 $216,492 2.88
 

 
Utility Fund - 2022 Projected Expense (by Expense Type) compared to 2021 Budget 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
as of Nov 8, 2021  

Utility Fund Expenses - Budget 2022
Wages and benefits 2,761,999$        2,584,865$              2,136,847$               2,384,765$           
Professional/Contractual services 1,004,647          1,007,618                859,978                    896,002                
Subscription/Memberships 19,257               19,419                     13,242                      14,937                  
Utilities 689,060             600,518                   576,036                    679,467                
Maintenance, materials and supplies 1,082,400          1,036,300                1,328,768                 1,232,896             
Travel 14,650               12,661                     1,003                        1,414                    
Amortization -                        -                               -                               2,017,098             
Interest 742,288             604,984                   457,461                    677,941                
Allowance for uncollectibles 1,000                 4,000                       -                               -                           
Other 155                    155                          155                           155                       

Total Utility Fund Expenses 6,315,454$        5,870,520$              5,373,490$               7,904,674$            
 
Utilities Fund 2022 Budget - Professional/Contractual compared to 2021 Budget 
 

Total budgeted professional contractual expenses 2021 $1,007,618

Water Services 34,029
Sanitary Sewer Services                        (37,000)

Proposed Budget 2022 $1,004,647  
For details of movement, see the individual departments below. 
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Utilities Fund 2022 Budget – Maintenance/Materials/Supplies compared to 2021 
Budget 
 

Total budgeted Maintenance/Materials/Supplies expenses 2021 $1,036,300

Water Services 42,900
Sanitary Sewer Services 3,200

Proposed Budget 2022 $1,082,400  
 
Utilities Fund – Projected 2022 Capital Spend by Department  
 

 
 
 

Utilities Fund - 2022 Capital Spend compared to 2021

2022 2021

Water 990,000$                     2,790,000$                    
Sanitary Sewer 7,385,510                    5,200,510                      

8,375,510$                  7,990,510$                     
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Underground Pipe and Asphalt Replacement (UPAR) Fund  
The UPAR program was implemented in 2015 to provide clear and predictable funding for the 
replacement of aging and deteriorating infrastructure. Prior to the UPAR program, projects were 
funded through either utility rates, or the local improvement process which charges project costs 
directly to the fronting property owners. The UPAR program collects revenue from all properties 
through a combination of a frontage-based levy and an infrastructure utility fee. 
 
While the implementation of the UPAR program in 2015 has significantly accelerated the rate of 
replacement, the challenge of aging infrastructure has not diminished. The life expectancy of 
underground sewer and water pipes is 50 to 100 years, depending on the type of pipe utilized. The City 
has an ever-increasing infrastructure deficit. At current funding levels, approximately 2 km per year is 
being replaced. A replacement rate of 6 km per year would be required just to keep up with the aging 
that will occur over the next decade. 
 
In 2022, the City plans to continue investment in UPAR with a planned investment of approximately 
$7,147,000 overall.  

 
City of North Battleford
UPAR Fund - Statement of Operations 
Forecast for the year ended December 31, 2022

% change 2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
as of Nov 8, 2021

Revenues

Frontage Levy  1,600,000$        1,600,000$        1,487,295$                 1,483,078$        
Base Utility Fees  1,600,000          1,600,000          1,635,375                   1,963,622          

-                         

Total Revenue 3,200,000          3,200,000          3,122,670                   3,446,700          

Capital Investment

Surface 2,902,638          1,404,300          571,173                      2,240,305          
Underground 1,209,704          1,866,300          -                                 941,811             

Total Expenses 4,112,342          3,270,600          571,173                      3,182,116          

(912,342)            (70,600)              2,551,497                   264,584             

Carry Over from Previous Year         4,039,426          1,348,252          1,487,929                   1,223,345          
Carry Over Surplus (Deficit)          3,127,084$        1,277,652$        4,039,426$                 1,487,929$        

Surplus (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenses 
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UPAR Fund 2022 Projected Budget: 
 
When the UPAR program was introduced, Administration maintained UPAR revenues and expenses 
separate from the General Fund and Utility Fund. This was to ensure complete transparency in the 
program to assure rate payers that the UPAR revenue raised through the frontage base tax and Utility 
billing, would always be spent on the projects earmarked during the budget deliberation process. To 
this effect, the 2022 Projected UPAR budget is as follows: 
 
Carryover Surplus 2020 $1,487,929 
Estimated 2021 revenues  3,502,067 
Estimated 2021 expenditures (573,810) 
Budgeted Revenue 2022 3,200,000 
Projected 2022 Funding  $ 8,763,805 

 
City Debt    
 
The maximum borrowing limit which was set by the Saskatchewan Municipal Board (SMB) in 2019 was 
$55 Million. The projected outstanding long-term debt amount at December 31, 2021 is $29.87 Million. 
The City will be paying $3.03 Million in principal debt repayments and $1.35 Million in interest 
payments in 2022.   The following are details of the projected balance by loan outstanding at 
December 31, 2022.  
 
Purpose of Borrowings General 

Fund 
Utilities 

Fund 
Total 

Utilities - New Storm Sewer  $ 428,000 $ 428,000 
Utilities - New Wastewater Treatment Plant  6,831,000 6,831,000 
Utilities - Water Treatment Plant investments  618,000 618,000 
General - CUplex (incl. Pool, Fieldhouse, Arts 
Centre and Curling Rink 

$ 7,306,000    7,306,000 

General - Land Development  1,862,000  1,862,000 
General - Road Infrastructure    1,784,000  1,784,000 
General – Parks & Recreation Facilities Betterments        638,000   638,000 

General – Land Acquisitions 2,541,000     2,541,000 
General – Waste Facility Equipment   398,000  398,000 
General – Road Infrastructure    398,000  398,000 
Utilities – Water Well          398,000 398,000 
General – Parks & Recreation Facilities Betterments 452,000  452,000 
General – Road Infrastructure 781,000  781,000 
General – Development Projects 1,450,000  1,450,000 
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General – Parks & Recreation Facilities Betterments 403,000  403,000 

General – RCMP Cellblock Upgrade 188,000  188,000 

General – Equipment Capital leases 137,000  137,000 

Utilities – Water & Sewer Facilities  644,000 644,000 

Utilities – Sewer Main Force  7,500,000 7,500,000 

TOTALS $18,338,000 $16,919,000  $35,257,000 
 
Long-term Debt per Person  
 

2020             
Annual Report 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Gross External Debt 33,462,675$           34,378,899$    31,545,669$   28,766,999       26,132,564    23,643,007   

Population 14,315                      14,315               14,315              14,315               14,315            14,315            

Debt per Person 2,338$                      2,402$               2,204$              2,010$               1,826$            1,652$             
 
 
 
 

LONG TERM DEBT 5 YEARS PAYMENT SCHEDULE

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Storm Sewer 226,716$                 226,716$          226,716$         

Sanitary Sewage 1,108,724                1,104,133         1,103,219        1,098,061$       1,094,552$    1,089,925$   

Water 222,188                    222,188             222,188           222,188             

Land Development 154,225                    153,612             154,789           154,196             154,516 154,488

Sanitary Sewer 147,799                    147,212             148,340           147,771             148,078 148,051

Multi purpose Leisure/Operations 331,083                    331,306             330,286           328,880             331,092 328,946

Multi purp. Leisure/Transp/Eng 83,438                      87,124               87,860              86,848               86,198 87,580

Multi purp. Plann/WatSew/Leis 197,378                    195,790             196,380           195,793             194,150 193,140

Sewer trunk 2021 (estimate) 474,981                    474,981             474,981           474,981             474,981          474,981         

Equipment Capital Leases 137,213                    
3,083,747$        2,943,061$   2,944,759$  2,708,719$   2,483,567$ 2,477,111$ 

(Excludes CuPlex long-term borrowing)  
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  2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Debt repayment per            
person 

                          
$215  

                    
$206  

     
$206  

                    
$189  

               
$189  

             
$173  

       

 
City Administration 
 

Senior Management Overview 
 
The City Directors along with their departmental employees are responsible for carrying out everyday 
duties at the City, per their job descriptions and functional responsibilities.  The City's management 
team includes: 
 

 City Manager – Dr. Randy Patrick 
 City Clerk – Stacey Hadley  
 Director of Corporate Services – Jennifer Niesink 
 Director of Finance – Brent Nadon 
 Director of Operations Services - Stewart Schafer 
 Director of Parks & Recreation Services – Cheryl DeNeire 
 Director of Protective Services/Fire Chief – Lindsay Holm 
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Growing the Community 
 
While the pandemic has stalled much of the world’s economy over the last two years, the City of North 
Battleford expects to return to growing both in population economically in 2022. The city’s municipal 
government is providing services and economic stimulus into various community organizations and 
services that benefit the greater Battlefords region and communities situated around the beautiful 
North Saskatchewan River Valley.   
 
In 2022, the City will provide approximately $1.6 Million in economic stimulus to many organizations in 
the community.  The City provides annual grant funding to organizations that in turn provide additional 
social and community support to our fellow citizens.  See additional information about the community 
grants below. For a complete list of the annual grants, see the appendix at the end of this report. 
 
The City's operating budget includes funding the following shared services and organizations: 
 
Battlefords Transit System (including Handi-Bus)              $         373,804 
 
Provides residents with transportation allowing those who have no other mode of transportation to 
still be active in the community. The City is providing $252,000 to the transit system and $121,804 to 
the Handi-bus operations.   
 
The Dekker Centre for the Performing Arts               $         227,610 
 
The Dekker Centre for Performing Arts is the only modern performing arts centre in the Battlefords. 
This facility can host many different types of professional acts and entertainment from across North 
America. The City provides a $227,610 operating grant to the Board of the Dekker Centre for the 
Performing Arts and pays for the cost of maintaining the facility.  The Performing Arts is requesting the 
grant to be $235,000 (this request is not reflected in the budget). 
 
Animal Control / Humane Society                                                                                            $         150,000 
 
The Humane Society provides a shelter for many animals in the Battlefords. This initiative encourages 
responsible pet ownership and provides an alternative to buying animals from a pet store. The City 
provides a $150,000 operating grant to the Humane Society and incurs other annual costs for building 
maintenance, building improvements, and the use of Special Constables for animal control.  
 
Lakeland Library Region                  $        361,024 
 
The Lakeland Library Region acts as the head office for the libraries in our region. The City, who is the 
largest funder for the Lakeland region, helps pay for the annual operating costs that support improved 
literacy in our communities.   
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North Battleford Library                  $         153,560 
 
The City provides the North Battleford Library with a grant of $153,560 for the annual facility 
operations and additional funding for periodic building maintenance and $7,000 for the rented space 
for the Sports Museum and Hall of Fame.   
 
River Valley Board                   $           53,000 
 
The City in partnership with the Town of Battleford provides funding based on an agreed formula to 
fund the cost of upkeep and beautification of the River Valley. 
 
North Battleford Golf and Country Club (NBGCC)               $          75,000 
 
The City provides an annual $75,000 grant for capital equipment and pays to maintain water and sewer 
utility infrastructure at the golf course. 
 
Destination Battlefords                                                                               $          118,458 
 
The City, in conjunction with the Town of Battleford and the Hotels Association, provides annual 
funding to Destination Battlefords Tourism. 
 
Boys and Girls Club                                                                                                                        $             43,000 
 
The City provides the following grants to the Boys and Girls Club: 

 $15,000 capital grant, 
 $28,000 summer program grant. In 2020, the City partnered with the Club for a trial partnership 

for the delivery of free summer day programs in some of the City parks. Due to the success of 
the program the Boys and Girls have requested we continue this funding in 2022.  

 
BTEC Capital Grant                                                                                                                           $           10,000 
 
The City provides a grant of $10,000 to BTEC to assist with the cost of the new facility. 2022 is the sixth  
year of a ten-year agreement. 

 
Community Development Financial Assistance Program                                                        $           60,000 
 
Each year the City provides a set amount of discretionary assistance funding to local non-profit groups 
that apply for assistance. This year a new Sub-Committee was formed and met on October 27th to 
review applications. Funding recommendations from that Committee will be forward brought to 
Council for approval during budget deliberations. Subject to that final approval, we have included the 
monetary value of the Committee recommendations in the budget document.  
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General Fund Operating Budgets by Department 

 
 General Government Services 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
as of Nov 8, 2021

GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

 - Sales of supplies 110,700$           255,000$                 139,741$                  138,387$              
 - Taxation Services 27,000               27,000                     17,046                      14,382                  
 - Expense Recoveries -                        -                               14,623                      17,775                  

Total Fees and Charges 137,700             282,000                   171,410                    170,545                
 - Tangible capital asset sales - gain (loss) -                        -                               12,058                      14,812                  
 - Investment & Interest 312,500             332,500                   335,774                    530,516                

Total Other Segmented Revenue 450,200             614,500                   519,243                    715,873                
Conditional Grants and Donations

 - Grants -                        -                               436                           227,536                
Total Operating Revenue 450,200             614,500                   519,679                    943,409                

Operating Expenses
Council remuneration and travel 302,693             295,511                   221,658                    264,139                
Wages and benefits 1,948,929          1,923,374                1,412,415                 1,948,278             
Professional/Contractual services 1,348,498          1,205,045                897,487                    942,670                
Subscription/Memberships 86,859               73,826                     30,006                      65,935                  
Utilities 110,082             108,040                   94,842                      164,054                
Maintenance, materials and supplies 168,425             133,424                   81,347                      151,039                
Travel 23,626               25,938                     1,398                        6,623                    
Amortization -                        -                               -                               75,888                  
Allowance for uncollectibles -                        -                               1                               182,824                
Insurance 550,000             442,800                   447,695                    421,133                
Medical 5,000                 2,500                       2,160                        645                       
Grants and contributions 160,000             167,744                   83,750                      198,400                
Other 3,000                 3,000                       27,272                      97,311                  

Total Government Services Expenses 4,707,112          4,381,202                3,300,031                 4,518,940             

Capital
Conditional Grants

 - Capital Grants -                        -                               -                               -                           

General Government Services Surplus (Deficit) (4,256,912)$      (3,766,702)$             (2,780,352)$             (3,575,532)$         
Capital Expenditure 568,000             265,000                   -                               -                           

Total General Government Services Financial Position (4,824,912)$      (4,031,702)$             (2,780,352)$             (3,575,532)$          
 
 
Revenues 
 

• General Government revenue is projected to decrease by approximately $164,000 mainly due 
to the following: 
 The removal of efficiency target of $150,000  
 Decrease in investment income and grants of approximately $14,000  
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Expenses  
 Wages and Benefits are projected to increase by approximately $25,000 due to: 

o ($200,000) of staff vacancies,  
o Reallocation of approximately $99,000 from the planning and development budget to 

general government,  
o Wage adjustment and cost of living of approximately $126,500 

• Professional Contractual expense movement compared to 2021 Budget: 

Total budgeted professional/contractual services 2021 $1,205,045 
New City website 20,000 
City Hall services contracts – global payments (5,000) 
City Hall – Controls audit 5,000 
Regional Study 100,000 
Human Resources – Specialized Advertising  31,000 
Safety services 2,000 
IT annual subscriptions and software (105,000) 
Training initiatives  2,750 
Legal services       50,000 
Outdoor Security camera assistance  10,000 
Battlefords Regional Community Coalition (BRCC) agreement 30,000 
Sundry 2,703 
Proposed Budget 2022 $1,348,498 

 
 Maintenance, materials, and supplies is expected to increase by approximately $35,000, due to 

the following: 
o Exterior security camera $10,000 
o Pest control   $  2,500 
o Small tools and supplies $12,000 
o IT hardware   $20,500 
o City Hall supplies  ($10,000) 

 
Capital expenditures are estimated to be $568,000. See “General Government” capital expenditures tab for 
details: 
 Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Software 
 Server Hardware 
 Firewalls 
 City Hall Copier 
 Temporary Council Chambers 
 Council Chambers – Phase 1 
 Large Format Scanner 
 Annual capital renewal 
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Policing Services 
2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 2021  
POLICING SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

 - Policing Fees/Fines 150,000$           140,000$                 78,427$                    115,202$              
Total Fees and Charges 150,000             140,000                   78,427                      115,202                

 - Total Police Services Other Revenue 339,240             339,240                   313,868                    375,328                
Total Other Segmented Revenue 489,240             479,240                   392,295                    490,529                
Conditional Grants

 - Grants 819,353             884,353                   435,094                    819,739                
Total Operating 1,308,593          1,363,593                827,389                    1,310,269             

Operating Expenses
Wages and benefits 612,014             618,648                   336,936                    483,980                
Professional/Contractual services 5,185,134          4,448,375                2,021,263                 4,472,773             
Utilities 78,200               78,200                     56,046                      77,451                  
Maintenance, materials and supplies 109,000             121,000                   60,734                      115,346                
Interest 7,166                 7,391                       1,704                        2,568                    

Total Policing Services Expense 5,991,515          5,273,614                2,476,682                 5,253,760             

Policing Services Surplus (Deficit) (4,682,922)$      (3,910,021)$             (1,649,293)$             (3,943,491)$         
Capital Expenditure -                               -                               -                           

Total Policing Services Financial Position (4,682,922)$      (3,910,021)$             (1,649,293)$             (3,943,491)$          
 
Revenues  
In 2022, Revenue from Policing is projected to decrease by approximately $55,000. The majority of it is 
due to the decrease in policing grants for one off payments seen in prior years and is partially offset by 
increased criminal record checks. 
 
Expenses 
 
Professional/Contractual Services is the 37 member RCMP Policing Contract with Her Majesty on 
behalf of the Federal Government. This increase of approximately $737,000 per year is the ongoing 
cost of a five-year retroactive increase negotiated between the federal government and the RCMP.  
While the actual contractual wage increase is over $1,000,00 per year, the City was able to partially 
offset the increase with other wage related cost reductions. 
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Fire and Protective Services 
2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 2021  
FIRE & PROTECTIVE SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

 - Total Fire Services Fees/Fines 61,500$             47,244$                   69,518$                    75,053$                
 - Total Provincial Fines 150,000             150,000                   127,357                    164,909                
 - Total Special Constables Fees/Fines 213,600             213,600                   193,097                    256,140                

Total Fees and Charges 425,100             410,844                   389,972                    496,102                
 - Total Fire Services Other Revenue 2,100                 2,100                       34,535                      10,368                  
 - Total Special Constables Other Revenue -                        -                               750                           1,550                    

Total Other Segmented Revenue 427,200             412,944                   425,257                    508,019                
Conditional Grants

 - Grants -                        -                               -                               -                           
Total Operating Revenue 427,200             412,944                   425,257                    508,019                

Operating Expenses
Special Constables
Wages and benefits 627,041             624,058                   436,975                    480,041                
Professional/Contractual services 9,511                 -                               -                               -                           
Subscription/Memberships 4,000                 3,000                       4,169                        590                       
Utilities 4,830                 4,689                       3,417                        4,986                    
Maintenance, materials and supplies 84,958               90,600                     74,305                      68,799                  
Travel 4,500                 1,900                       1,814                        689                       
Total Special Constables Expenses 734,840             724,247                   520,680                    555,104                

Fire Services
Wages and benefits 2,023,239          1,977,505                1,685,393                 2,033,806             
Professional/Contractual services 134,439             52,250                     19,654                      36,441                  
Subscription/Memberships 52,530               51,000                     22,600                      38,631                  
Utilities 41,269               40,067                     25,476                      37,796                  
Maintenance, materials and supplies 133,441             135,200                   167,376                    162,854                
Travel 8,240                 8,000                       1,696                        1,215                    
Medical 1,030                 1,000                       -                               475                       
Total Fire Services Expenses 2,394,188          2,265,022                1,922,195                 2,494,198             

Safety & Emergency Preparedness
Professional/Contractual services 12,541               14,407                     10,382                      3,571                    
Subscription/Memberships 7,000                 5,400                       7,000                        5,270                    
Maintenance, materials and supplies 567                    550                          -                               117                       
Travel 1,597                 1,550                       180                           179                       
Total Safety & Emergency Preparedness Expenses 21,704               21,907                     17,562                      9,137                    

Animal, Humane Society Expenses
Professional/Contractual services 150,000             150,000                   112,529                    150,000                
Utilities 10,588               10,280                     7,577                        10,088                  
Maintenance, materials and supplies 2,575                 2,500                       1,933                        3,920                    
Total Animal, Humane Society Expenses 163,163             162,780                   122,039                    164,009                

Total Fire and Protective Services Expenses 3,313,895          3,173,957                2,582,476                 3,222,448             

Capital
Conditional Grants

 - Capital Grants -                        -                               -                               -                           

Fire & Protective Services Surplus (Deficit) (2,886,695)$      (2,761,013)$             (2,157,219)$             (2,714,429)$         
Capital Expenditure -                        670,000                   -                               -                           
Transfer to Reserves (91,032)             -                               -                               -                           
Transfers from Reserves (300,000)           (300,000)                  -                               -                           

Total Fire & Protective Services Financial Position (3,095,663)$      (3,731,013)$             (2,157,219)$             (2,714,429)$          
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Revenues 
 
There are no major expected changes in 2022 revenues.  
 
Expenses 

 
Special Constables 
 

 Contractual services in 2022 are expected to increase by $9,511. In 2021, the City purchased a 
CSO vehicle using reserves. As proposed in the 2021 budget, the purchase was internally 
financed over 10 years with an internal rate of 6% per annum. An annual transfer of $9,511 to 
reserves is planned until 2032. 

 
Fire Services 

 Wages and benefits in 2022 are expected to increase compared to the 2021 Budget by 
approximately $46,000 due to cost of living adjustment. 
 

 Contractual services in 2022 are expected to increase by approximately $82,000. In 2021, the 
City purchased a fire pumper truck for approximately $752,000. As proposed in the 2021 
Budget, $300,000 was internally financed over 10 years with an internal rate of 6% per annum. 
An annual transfer of $81,521 to reserves is planned until 2032. 
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Operations Services 
2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 2021  
OPERATIONS SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

 - Aviation Revenue 122,650$           122,650$                 121,467$                  121,520$              
 - Expense Recoveries 3,435                 2,758                       986,903                    1,416,411             

Total Other Segmented Revenue 126,085             125,408                   1,108,370                 1,537,932             
Conditional Grants

 - Grants 1,234,667          404,200                   1,814,301                 3,136,338             
Total Operating Revenue 1,360,752          529,608                   2,922,671                 4,674,270             

Operating Expenses
Public Works & Fleet
Wages and benefits 2,063,217          1,977,631                1,438,244                 1,346,962             
Professional/Contractual services 1,427,671          1,269,322                794,396                    634,611                
Subscription/Memberships 22,456               20,675                     7,540                        13,972                  
Utilities 494,896             487,116                   414,166                    533,904                
Maintenance, materials and supplies 1,030,618          947,518                   1,158,094                 1,595,922             
Travel 14,266               4,730                       1,493                        4,314                    
Amortization -                        -                               -                               2,747,659             
Interest 70,141               83,677                     31,821                      76,821                  
Allowance for uncollectibles -                        -                               -                               -                           
Insurance 135,000             135,000                   115,045                    125,096                
Medical -                        -                               -                               -                           
Grants and contributions -                        -                               -                               -                           
Other 30,000               30,000                     15,465                      18,930                  
Total Public Works & Operations Expenses 5,288,265          4,955,669                3,976,264                 7,098,192             

Total Operations Services Expenses 5,288,265          4,955,669                3,976,264                 7,098,192             

Capital
Conditional Grants

 - Capital Grants -                        -                               -                               -                           

Operations Surplus (Deficit) (3,927,512)$      (4,426,061)$             (1,053,594)$             (2,423,922)$         
Capital Expenditure 1,128,000          620,000                   -                               -                           

Total Operations Financial Position (5,055,512)$      (5,046,061)$             (1,053,594)$             (2,423,922)$          
 
Revenues 
 

 In 2022, revenue is expected to increase by approximately $831,000 due to gas tax funding. 
 
Expenses 
 
Public Works & Fleet 
 

 Wages and benefits in 2022 are projected to increase by approximately $86,000 mainly due to 
cost of living and a change in the pay scale for employees.   
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 Professional / Contractual services is projected to increase by $158,000 mainly due to the 
following: 

Total budgeted professional/contractual services 2021 $1,269,322 
Sidewalk plow lease   30,000 
Sweeper lease increase 12,000 
PW Fleet one-off projects in 2021 (70,000) 
PW shop LED lighting conversion 15,000 
PW shop 2021 building maintenance (5,000) 
Patching service contracts – 100 Street and Territorial Dr intersection 160,000 
Patching services contracts – Best Canadian/Humpty’s Service Road 45,000 
Weed Control 15,000 
Road assessment one-off project in 2021 (50,000) 
Lighting at Exhibition Rd and Access Communication Centre 14,000 
Sidewalk replacement  and repairs 27,000 
Airport study one-off project in 2021 (17,000) 
Airport maintenance one-off in 2021 (19,000) 
Sundry contracts increase 1,349 
Proposed Budget 2022 $1,427,671 

 Maintenance, materials, and supplies expense movement compared to 2021 Budget:   

Total budgeted maintenance, materials and supplies 2021 $947,518 
Public Works admin office supplies 3,000 
Fleet equipment hoists 35,000 
Fleet supplies 5,000 
 Public Works decrease in building repairs (7,000) 
Grading and gravelling supplies 2,000 
Oil supply 2,000 
Street sweeping supplies 8,000 
Bollards 10,000 
Electronic signs 16,000 
Concrete blocks for the Access Communication centre 5,000 
Airport supplies 2,000 
Airport building maintenance 4,500 
Airport fuel (3,000) 
Sundry 600 
Proposed Budget 2022 $1,030,618 

 



 

     2022 Budget   City of North Battleford        Page 35 of 61 

 

 Interest is expected to decrease by approximately $13,500 as one long-term debt is nearing to 
its maturity date. 

 
Capital expenditures are estimated to be $1,878,000. See Operations capital expenditures tab for details: 
 
 Cemetery grass mower 
 Airport security fence 
 River Valley RTV 
 Asphalt recycler 
 Drainage for the 110th Street building 
 Airport Maintenance shop renovation 
 Signal installation Territorial Dr, Co-Op and Sobeys 
 Stair climber 
 Signal lights camera 
 Sidewalk replacement 
 Reconstruction of Wearing Road 
 Bobcat cleanup bucket 
 Remote slope lawn mower 
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Waste Management Services 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
as of Nov 8, 2021  

WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

Waste and Disposal Fees 1,009,000$        1,200,000$              1,515,908$               1,308,749$           
Total Fees and Charges 1,009,000          1,200,000                1,515,908                 1,308,749             

Other Revenue, Garbage and Recycling 1,049,536          1,055,676                895,160                    1,057,698             
Total Other Segmented Revenue 2,058,536          2,255,676                2,411,068                 2,366,448             
Conditional Grants

 - Grants 143,808             143,808                   72,955                      134,497                
Total Operating Revenue 2,202,344          2,399,485                2,484,023                 2,500,945             

Operating Expenses
Wages and benefits 610,257             582,490                   461,598                    517,097                
Professional/Contractual services 817,454             801,124                   557,169                    783,271                
Subscription/Memberships 4,662                 3,932                       3,266                        6,956                    
Utilities 15,849               10,099                     9,452                        6,698                    
Maintenance, materials and supplies 157,008             143,500                   131,881                    128,852                
Travel 4,200                 1,470                       99                             857                       
Interest 14,097               14,518                     11,382                      14,654                  
Other 70,000               70,000                     -                               238,277                

Total Waste Management Services Expenses 1,693,526          1,627,133                1,174,848                 1,855,574             
Capital

Conditional Grants
 - Capital Grants -                        -                               -                               -                           

Waste Management Services Surplus (Deficit) 508,817$           772,352$                 1,309,175$               645,372$              

Capital Expenditure 45,000               
Transfers to Reserves (44,564)             (44,564)                    -                               -                           
Transfers from Reserves -                        -                               -                               -                           

Total Waste Management Services Financial Position 508,381$           727,788$                 1,309,175$               645,372$               
 
Revenues 

• Waste and Disposal fee revenues in 2022 include a 4% increase (garbage and recycling) and a 
reduction in overall revenues due to the Old Saskatchewan Hospital Project which was a one-off 
project in 2021. 
 

Expenses 

 Expenses are projected to increase by approximately $66,000 mainly due to the following: 
o Wages and benefit change of pay scale and cost of living $28,000 
o Service contracts increase of $16,000 (mainly due to a required groundwater study) 
o Purchase of garbage bins $16,500 
o Utilities expense increase of $5,800 
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During 2019, the City purchased a Volvo loader for $328,183. The purchase was internally financed 
over 10 years with an internal interest rate of 6% per annum. An annual transfer of $44,564 to reserves 
is planned until 2030.  

 
Capital expenditures are estimated to be $85,000. See Operations capital expenditures tab for details: 
 
 Power Sliding Gate 
 Waste Management Trailer 
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Planning and Development Services 
2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 2021  

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

 - Business Licenses 200,000$           190,000$                 229,025$                  287,387$              
 - Building & Development Permits 109,400             77,400                     352,045                    155,940                
 - Development Agreements 76,000               76,854                     119,226                    68,885                  
 - Land Rent 50,000               43,000                     40,175                      77,018                  

Total Fees and Charges 435,400             387,254                   740,470                    589,230                
 - Lot Options 3,000                 3,000                       968,528                    246,817                 - Investment & Interest -                        -                               -                               -                           

Total Other Segmented Revenue 438,400             390,254                   1,708,998                 836,047                
Conditional Grants

 - Grants 35,223               35,223                     -                               94,348                  
Total Operating Revenue 473,623             425,477                   1,708,998                 930,396                

Operating Expenses
Business Licenses
Wages and benefits 51,064               90,581                     66,018                      75,512                  
Professional/Contractual services 75,000               40,000                     81,322                      93,021                  
Maintenance, materials and supplies 500                    500                          1,728                        2,447                    
Total Business Licenses 126,564             131,081                   149,068                    170,980                

Economic Development
Wages and benefits 76,409               34,166                     27,554                      51,361                  
Subscription/Memberships 2,250                 2,150                       590                           696                       

 by $42,Travel 2,100                 2,100                       -                               2,118                    
Grants and contributions 492,261             526,176                   118,458                    534,306                
Total Economic Development 573,020             564,592                   146,602                    588,481                

Engineering
Wages and benefits 183,811             191,896                   104,580                    75,939                  
Professional/Contractual services 5,000                 1,000                       424                           8,156                    
Subscription/Memberships -                        2,500                       -                               505                       
Maintenance, materials and supplies 4,100                 6,300                       4,471                        3,885                    
Travel -                        1,900                       -                               1,099                    
Total Engineering 192,911             203,596                   109,475                    89,584                  

Planning
Wages and benefits 173,613             258,330                   360,538                    228,248                
Professional/Contractual services 36,000               70,000                     72,972                      84,080                  
Subscription/Memberships 11,500               11,500                     7,927                        7,988                    
Maintenance, materials and supplies 500                    500                          63                             862                       
Travel 6,000                 6,000                       44                             453                       
Interest 223,141             230,838                   160,844                    196,570                
Grants and contributions 92,907               43,500                     -                               87,597                  
Total Planning 543,661             620,668                   602,388                    605,797                

Total Planning and Development Services 1,436,156          1,519,937                1,007,533                 1,454,841             

Total Planning and Development Services Surplus (Deficit) (962,533)$         (1,094,460)$             701,465$                  (524,445)$            
Capital Expenditure 120,000             50,000                     

Total Planning and Development Services Financial Position (1,082,533)$      (1,144,460)$             701,465$                  (524,445)$             
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Revenues 

The projected revenues for Planning and Development Services for 2022 is approximately $474,000, 
with an estimated increase of approximately $48,000 compared to 2021 mainly due to an expected 
increase in building and development permits, and business licenses.   

Expenses 

Overall expenses are projected to decrease in 2022 compared to Budget 2021 in the approximate 
amount of $84,000, with significant details as follows: 

Business Licenses and Economic Development  

 Business licenses wages and benefits were reallocated to general government by approximately 
$40,000 

 Contractual services for building inspections are expected to increase by $35,000 this will be offset 
with the additional revenues projected. 

 Economic development wages and benefits were reallocated from planning and development by 
approximately $42,000 

 
Engineering  
 Wages and benefits are expected to decrease by approximately $8,000 due to reallocation from 

the UPAR program  
 
Planning  
 Wages and benefits are expected to decrease by $85,000 due to reallocation of wages to 

economic development and engineering. 
 Professional and contractual services are expected to decrease by approximately $34,000 as the 

purchase of downtown signs were a one-off expense in 2021. 
 Interest is expected to decrease by approximately $7,700 due to some long-term debts are nearing 

their maturity date. 
 
 
Capital expenditures are estimated to be $120,000. See Planning & Development capital expenditures tab for 
details: 
 
 Sidewalk – 110th Street to Territorial Phase 1 – 110th to Battleford Road 
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Parks & Recreation Services 
2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 2021  
PARKS & RECREATION SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

 - Recreation Fees & Services 752,750$           403,250$                 361,132$                  304,243$              
 - Galleries 34,300               27,300                     37,889                      22,760                  
 - Recreation Facilities Rental 891,000             787,000                   544,569                    695,044                
 - Cemetery 155,000             155,000                   128,540                    145,039                

Total Other Segmented Revenue 1,833,050          1,372,550                943,590                    1,022,046             
Conditional Grants

 - Grants 223,350             246,425                   120,984                    224,740                
Total Operating Revenue 2,056,400          1,618,975                1,064,574                 1,246,787             

Operating Expenses
Recreational Facilities & Programing
Wages and benefits 2,355,138          2,077,311                1,308,496                 1,869,196             
Professional/Contractual services 552,124             555,864                   324,116                    418,170                
Subscription/Memberships 22,925               15,660                     4,050                        3,460                    
Utilities 851,361             794,172                   629,138                    755,372                
Maintenance, materials and supplies 318,950             314,020                   188,155                    303,418                
Travel 8,570                 8,815                       559                           1,630                    
Interest 313,438             368,332                   245,951                    414,988                
Grants and contributions 515,624             515,624                   476,194                    515,024                
Other 9,600                 9,600                       6,286                        8,405                    
Total Recreational Facilities & Programing 4,947,731          4,659,398                3,182,947                 4,570,672             
Galleries
Wages and benefits 303,843             267,870                   217,167                    175,213                
Professional/Contractual services 81,820               65,316                     26,872                      43,826                  
Subscription/Memberships -                        -                               -                               -                           
Utilities 35,926               32,876                     32,207                      37,027                  
Maintenance, materials and supplies 24,700               27,100                     18,419                      27,742                  
Travel 800                    800                          -                               -                           
Total Galleries 447,089             393,962                   294,664                    295,819                
Cemeteries
Wages and benefits 134,187             132,732                   137,788                    176,533                
Professional/Contractual services 12,000               9,500                       19,220                      8,135                    
Utilities 23,490               18,390                     5,098                        24,984                  
Maintenance, materials and supplies 6,500                 8,900                       27,309                      36,705                  
Cemeteries Total 176,177             169,522                   189,415                    246,729                

Parks & Forestry
Wages and benefits 632,079             612,896                   476,532                    506,098                
Professional/Contractual services 177,900             175,600                   122,155                    111,357                
Utilities 163,394             121,644                   58,373                      116,783                
Maintenance, materials and supplies 92,700               87,700                     187,294                    210,721                
Amortization -                        -                               -                               1,563,046             
Grants and contributions 64,000               79,000                     11,000                      64,000                  
Total Parks & Forestry Expenses 1,130,073          1,076,840                855,354                    2,572,005             

Total Parks & Recreation Services 6,701,070          6,299,722                4,522,380                 7,685,224             

Capital
Conditional Grants

 - Capital grants -                        -                               -                               -                           
 - Community capital pledges/contributions -                        -                               -                               (2,400)                  

Total Capital -                        -                               -                               (2,400)                  

Parks & Recreation Services Surplus (Deficit) (4,644,670)$      (4,680,747)$             (3,457,806)$             (6,438,437)$         
Capital Expenditure 384,300             868,000                   -                               -                           

Total Parks & Recreation Services Financial Position (5,028,970)$      (5,548,747)$             (3,457,806)$             (6,438,437)$          
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Revenue 
 
Overall revenues are expected to increase by approximately $1,322,000 in 2022 compared to 2021 
mainly due to the following: 
 Swimming pool registrations, sale of goods and services increase of $248,500 
 Performing Arts, ticket sales increase of $5,000 
 Field house rents, registrations and sale of services increase of $96,000 
 Galleries sale of goods and services increase of $7,000 
 Increase in rentals of Access Communication Centre, Don Ross Arena, Don Ross Complex and other 

City facilities of $104,000 
 
Expenses 
 
Overall expenses are expected to increase by $401,000. The main variances are as follows: 
 
Recreational Facilities & Programming 

 Wages and benefits in 2022 are projected to increase approximately $278,000. This is due to 
increase of pool staff back to pre-pandemic levels and wage adjustment due to cost of living. 
Hours of operation in 2021 were: 

o January to August - 40 hours per week 
o September to December -  84 per week 

 The proposed hours of operations for 2022 are as follows: 
o January to December 2022 - 93 hours per week  

 A gradual increase towards full operations is planned for 2023. 
 Utilities are expected to increase by $57,000 due to adjusting electric, gas and phones from 

budgets to actuals 
 Interest on long-term debt is expected to decrease by $54,900  

 
Galleries 

 Wages and benefits are expected to increase by $36,000 due to the re-opening of the Chapel 
Gallery, increasing casual staff as required. 
 

 Professional and Contractual services is expected to increase by $16,500 due to instructors and 
an interior light controller. Programs are not offered unless there is a full cost recovery.  

 
Parks & Forestry 
Overall expenses are expected to increase by $53,000. The main variances are as follows: 
 

 Wages and benefits are expected to be increased by $19,000, due to pay scale and cost of living 
adjustments. 
 

 Utilities are expected to increase by $41,700 due to adjustments of electric, gas, water and 
phones from budgets to actuals. 
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Capital expenditures are estimated to be $1,674,300. See Parks & Recreation capital expenditures tab for 
details: 
 
 Allen Sapp Gallery - Blinds 
 Don Ross Arena – Score Clock  
 Don Ross Arena – Exit Doors 
 Nations Fieldhouse – Metal Cladding  
 Co-op Aquatic Centre – Electrical Upgrades 
 Don Ross Community Centre – Rooftop / Air Handler unit 
 Parks – Irrigation System replacement 
 Parks – Full shale replacement 
 Parks – Park benches and picnic tables 
 Parks – Playground / Splash Park structure 
 Parks - Gazebos  
 Parks – Stadium storage shed 
 Parks – Cemetery columbarium 
 Parks – Ball Diamond washroom upgrades 
 Tennis Court windscreen 
 Tree Replacement Reserve 
 Access Communication Centre – Concession Roof Replacement 
 Aquatic Centre – Roof Replacement 
 Dekker Centre – Roof Replacement 
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CUplex Summary Statement of Operations (all components) 
 
The following is the Summary Statement of Operations for all the CUplex components (Swim Pool, 
Fieldhouse, Curling Centre, Performing Arts and CUplex Grounds) combined.   
 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Rental 195,000$           125,000$       55,117$             108,453$       

Registrations 30,000              24,000          7,714                9,159            

Sale of Goods 15,000              8,000            7,171                6,550            

Sale of Service 589,250            315,750         316,187             247,997         

829,250$           472,750$       386,190$           372,160$       

Wages and benefits 1,525,800$        1,289,122$    721,864$           937,359$       

Professional/Contractual services 391,804            341,744         225,675             305,438         

Utilities 419,757            409,257         297,918             330,874         

Maintenance, materials and supplies 212,140            206,520         118,233             208,037         

Travel 1,500                2,045            491                   815               

Bank charges 8,800                8,800            4,188                4,173            

Other 8,000                8,000            4,245                7,905            

Total Expense 2,567,801          2,265,488      1,372,613          1,794,602      

(1,738,551)$       (1,792,738)$   (986,423)$          (1,422,442)$   

Cuplex complex

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)  
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NationsWest Field House 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Rental 125,000$           55,000$         29,329$             40,879$         

Registrations 30,000              24,000          7,714                9,159            

Sale of Service 90,000              70,000          35,449               51,701          

245,000$           149,000$       72,492$             101,739$       

Wages and benefits 424,907$           400,302$       242,781$           273,771$       

Professional/Contractual services 32,500              28,500          15,166               15,003          

Utilities 115,164            107,864         80,622               84,543          

Maintenance, materials and supplies 43,200              41,155          18,077               25,484          

Bank charges 4,000                4,000            2,090                2,154            

Total Expense 619,771            581,821         358,735             400,956         

(374,771)$          (432,821)$      (286,243)$          (299,216)$      

Cost recovery ratio 39.53% 25.61% 20.21% 25.37%

Total Revenue

Field House

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)
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The Co-Op Aquatic Centre 

 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Rental 70,000$            70,000$         25,788$             67,574$         

Sale of Goods 15,000              8,000            7,171                6,550            

Sale of Service 488,000            239,500         280,738             189,956         

Donations -                   -                -                    -                

573,000$           317,500$       313,697$           264,080$       

Wages and benefits 1,100,893$        888,820$       477,766$           631,086$       

Professional/Contractual services 78,660              32,860          18,134               22,741          

Utilities 294,346            291,146         207,145             236,871         

Maintenance, materials and supplies 156,540            152,965         91,186               145,863         

Travel 1,500                2,045            491                   815               

Bank charges 4,800                4,800            2,098                2,019            

Other 8,000                8,000            4,245                7,905            

Total Expense 1,644,739          1,380,636      801,065             1,047,300      

(1,071,739)$       (1,063,136)$   (487,368)$          (783,219)$      

Cost recovery ratio 34.84% 23.00% 39.16% 25.22%

Swim Pool

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)
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Northland Power Curling Centre 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Sale of Service 1,250$              1,250$          -$                  1,250$          

1,250$              1,250$          -$                  1,250$          

Wages and benefits -$                     -$              819$                 16,020$         

Professional/Contractual services 31,717              26,567          13,018               17,160          

Utilities 3,949                3,949            3,973                4,410            

Maintenance, materials and supplies 8,600                8,600            2,085                13,376          

Total Expense 44,266              39,116          19,895               50,966          

(43,016)$           (37,866)$        (19,895)$            (49,716)$        

Curling Centre

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)  
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The Dekker Centre for Performing Arts 
 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Sale of Goods
Sale of Service 10,000$            5,000$          -$                  5,090$          

10,000$            5,000$          -$                  5,090$          

Wages and benefits -$                     -$              498$                 15,866$         

Professional/Contractual services 248,927            253,817         179,357             250,533         

Utilities 6,298                6,298            6,178                4,927            

Maintenance, materials and supplies 3,800                3,800            6,885                23,316          

Total Expense 259,025            263,915         192,918             294,642         

(249,025)$          (258,915)$      (192,918)$          (289,552)$      

Performing Arts Centre

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)  
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The Don Ross Complex 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Rental 375,000$           350,000$       317,212$           345,103$       

Sale of Service 1,500                1,500            2                       277               

376,500$           351,500$       317,213$           345,380$       

Wages and benefits 237,990$           229,503$       175,199$           223,412$       

Professional/Contractual services 59,240              36,790          17,758               25,990          

Utilities 144,555            125,555         37,303               47,212          

Maintenance, materials and supplies 31,800              31,600          20,967               23,718          

Travel -                       -                   33                     698               

Bank charges 3,000                2,200            2,267                2,410            

Total Expense 476,585            425,648         253,527             391,351         

(100,085)$          (74,148)$        63,687$             (45,970)$        

Cost recovery ratio 79.00% 82.58% 125.12% 88.25%

Don Ross Complex

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)
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Don Ross Arena 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Rental 140,000$           130,000$       60,615$             105,819$       

140,000$           130,000$       60,615$             105,819$       

Wages and benefits 164,340$           126,509$       75,591$             94,267$         

Professional/Contractual services 2,800                3,000            2,818                5,281            

Utilities 91,285              76,400          128,863             163,559         

Maintenance, materials and supplies 13,050              13,050          4,141                7,171            

Total Expense 271,475            218,959         211,412             270,277         

(131,475)$          (88,959)$        (150,797)$          (164,458)$      

Cost recovery ratio 51.57% 59.37% 28.67% 39.15%

Expenses

Don Ross Arena

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Total Revenue

Surplus (Deficit)
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North Battleford Access Communication Centre 
 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Rental 275,000$           230,000$       116,892$           171,701$       

275,000$           230,000$       116,892$           171,701$       

Wages and benefits 232,090$           247,471$       205,246$           229,830$       

Professional/Contractual services 35,400              105,250         41,456               22,575          

Utilities 176,402            175,894         134,111             199,721         

Maintenance, materials and supplies 42,460              43,100          33,689               40,156          

Total Expense 486,352            571,715         414,501             609,184         

(211,352)$          (341,715)$      (297,609)$          (437,482)$      

Cost recovery ratio 56.54% 40.23% 28.20% 28.19%

Surplus (Deficit)

Access Communications Centre

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

 
 
The Access Communication Centre revenues are expected to increase by 17% due to increase of 
rentals. 
 
The budgeted expenses are expected to decrease by 10.95% mainly due to the Accessibility Study 
being completed. 
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Galleries 
 
Allen Sapp Gallery 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Sale of Goods 20,000$            20,000$         21,411$             16,714$         

Sale of Service 4,000                4,000            8,059                2,186            

Donations 3,300                3,300            2,816                1,549            

Grants 63,350              49,425          29,239               96,855          

90,650$            76,725$         61,525$             117,304$       

Wages and benefits 151,137$           241,904$       191,550$           116,991$       

Professional/Contractual services 75,270              55,766          26,308               24,307          

Utilities 33,968              30,918          30,013               35,273          

Maintenance, materials and supplies 22,500              25,900          17,839               25,206          

Travel 800                   800               -                       -                   

Total Expense 283,675            355,288         265,709             210,113         

(193,025)$          (278,563)$      (204,184)$          (92,809)$        

Cost recovery ratio 31.96% 21.60% 23.16% 55.83%

Allen Sapp Gallery

Statement of Operations

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)
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Chapel Gallery 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual

as of Nov 8, 
2021

Rental 2,000$              -$              (445)$                1,078$          

Sale of Service 3,000                -                -                    642               

Donations 2,000                -                6,048                591               

Grants -                   -                -                    -                

7,000$              -$              5,603$               2,311$          

Wages and benefits 152,705$           25,966$         21,328$             58,222$         

Professional/Contractual services 6,550                9,550            564                   19,518          

Subscription/Memberships -                       -                   -                       -                   

Utilities 1,958                1,958            2,194                1,754            

Maintenance, materials and supplies 2,200                1,200            580                   2,536            

Travel -                       -                   -                       -                   

Total Expense 163,413            38,674          24,666               85,706          

(156,413)$          (38,674)$        (19,063)$            (83,395)$        

Statement of Operations

Chapel Gallery

Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

     2022 Budget   City of North Battleford        Page 53 of 61 

 

Water Utility Services 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
as of Nov 8, 2021  

WATER SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

 - Water Fees 3,802,406$        3,625,627$              3,149,763$               3,737,914$           
 - Water Works Expense Recovery 26,000               107,950                   45,606                      28,284                  

Total Fees and Charges 3,828,406          3,733,577                3,195,369                 3,766,198             
 - Investment & Interest 16,000               8,730                       18,792                      17,725                  

Total Other Segmented Revenue 3,844,406          3,742,306                3,214,161                 3,783,922             
Conditional Grants

 - Grants -                        -                               -                               -                           
Total Operating 3,844,406          3,742,306                3,214,161                 3,783,922             

Operating Expenses
Wages and benefits 1,503,196          1,479,913                1,311,916                 1,403,216             
Professional/Contractual services 709,351             675,322                   570,542                    671,595                
Subscription/Memberships 14,902               14,619                     11,109                      11,477                  
Utilities 395,080             331,392                   317,208                    355,435                
Maintenance, materials and supplies 730,150             687,250                   1,019,883                 850,659                
Travel 6,941                 6,966                       1,003                        1,135                    
Amortization -                        -                               -                               826,672                
Interest 57,396               65,254                     17,225                      64,892                  
Allowance for uncollectibles 1,000                 4,000                       -                               -                           
Other 155                    155                          155                           155                       

Total Water Services Expenses 3,418,170          3,264,871                3,249,040                 4,185,235             

Capital
Conditional Grants

 - Capital Grants -                        848,000                   -                               -                           

Water Services 426,236$           477,435$                 (34,879)$                  (401,313)$            
Capital Expenditure 860,000             2,790,000                -                               -                           

Total Water Services Financial Position (433,764)$         (2,312,565)$             (34,879)$                  (401,313)$             
 
Revenues 

Water fees are expected to increase by: 
  3% in base water and consumption rates for future capital construction of a reservoir. 
 
The water expense recovery has decrease of approximately $82,000 mainly due to the establishment 
of efficiencies of $100,000 from 2021 and realigning the reconnection fees. 

Expenses 

Overall expenses are projected to increase in 2022 compared to Budget 2021 in the approximate 
amount of $153,000, with details as follows: 

• Wages and Benefits are projected to increase by approximately $23,000 mainly due to pay scale  
and wage adjustments.  
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 Professional contractual expenses are projected to increase in 2022 compared to Budget 2021 

by approximately $34,000 mainly due to the following: 
o Reduction on decommissioning of wells ($12,000) 
o SCADA maintenance $4,000 
o Main services contract (contract repairs and pavement restoration) increases of $20,000 
o Decrease of pavement and sidewalks restoration ($16,000) 
o Service contract for the 114th Reservoir $20,000 
o Fairview Heights HVAC system and fence realignment $18,000 
 

 Utilities have increased $64,00 to realign with current expenditures. 
 

 Maintenance Materials and supplies in 2022 are projected to increase by approximately 
$43,000 or approximately 6% mainly due to the following: 
 
 No 1 Water Plant supplies including distribution pump parts are expected to increase by $22,500 
 No 1 Water Plant equipment repairs are expected to decrease by $6,000 
 Holliday water plant equipment repairs are expected to increase by $6,000 
 Holliday water plant chemicals are expected to increase by $10,500 
 Holliday water plant supplies are expected to increase by $10,000 

 
 
Capital expenditures are estimated to be $990,000. See Water & Sewer Services capital expenditures tab for 
details: 
 
 Replacement of John East Hydrants 
 FE Holliday Backwash Sump Drain Pipe 
 FE Electrical Panel addition 
 WTP#1 Ventilation System Service Walkway 
 Backup generator at Fairview Reservoir 
 Water distribution master plan – Line Douglas to Person Ave 
 Water pressure at Borden and Laurier Cres 
 FE Holliday control room 
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Sanitary Sewer Utility Services 
 

2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
as of Nov 8, 2021  

SANITARY SEWER SERVICES
Operating Revenue

Other Segmented Revenue
Fees and Charges

 - Sanitary Sewer Fees 3,883,573$        3,763,587$              3,213,345$               3,761,173$           
 - Sanitary Sewer Expense Recovery 2,500                 8,094                       3,589                        21,728                  

Total Other Segmented Revenue 3,886,073          3,771,681                3,216,933                 3,782,902             
Conditional Grants

 - Grants -                        -                               -                               -                           
Total Operating Revenue 3,886,073          3,771,681                3,216,933                 3,782,902             

Operating Expenses
Wages and benefits 1,258,803          1,104,952                824,931                    981,549                
Professional/Contractual services 295,296             332,296                   289,436                    224,407                
Subscription/Memberships 4,355                 4,800                       2,133                        3,461                    
Utilities 293,980             269,126                   258,828                    324,032                
Maintenance, materials and supplies 352,250             349,050                   308,886                    382,237                
Travel 7,709                 5,695                       -                               279                       
Amortization -                        -                               -                               1,190,426             
Interest 684,891             539,730                   440,236                    613,049                

Total Sanitary Sewer Services Expenses 2,897,284          2,605,649                2,124,450                 3,719,439             
Capital

Conditional Grants
 - Capital Grants 3,440,340          3,440,340                190,794                    267,514                

Total Sanitary Sewer Services 4,429,129$        4,606,372$              1,092,484$               63,463$                
Capital Expenditure 7,385,510          5,200,510                -                               -                           

Total Sanitary Sewer Services Financial Position (2,956,381)$      (594,138)$                1,092,484$               63,463$                 
 
Revenues 

Sanitary Sewer Services Revenue is expected to increase by 3% in base water and consumption rates.    

Expenses 

Overall expenses are projected to increase in 2022 compared to the 2021 budget in the approximate 
amount of $292,000 with the main details as follows: 

• Wages and Benefits are projected to increase by approximately $154,000 due to pay scale and 
cost of living adjustments. 

• Professional contractual expenses are projected to decrease in 2022 compared to Budget 2021 
by approximately $37,000 or approximately 11%.  

• Utilities have been increased $24,900 to realign with current expenditures. 

• Interest Expense in 2022 is projected to increase by approximately $145,000 due to the sewer 
force  main loan and repayment of debt. 
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Capital expenditures are estimated to be $7,385,510. See Water & Sewer Services capital expenditures tab for 
details: 
 Sewer Force Main 
 WWTP HVAC replacement 
 Reline 200 metre of storm sewer pipe 
 Hydrovac Truck displacement pump 
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City of North Battleford Third Party Grants 
Master Schedule – 2022 
 

 
Receiving Organization 

 
2022  

Requested 
North Battleford Transit System  $252,000 

Battleford’s Handi Bus System $121,804 

The Humane Society $150,000 

The Lakeland Library $361,024 

The North Battleford Library $153,560 

Dekker Centre Performing Arts $235,000 

Destination Battlefords $118,458 

The Boys and Girls Club of the Battlefords - capital $15,000 

The Boys and Girls Club of the Battlefords – Summer 
Playground program 

$28,000 

North Battleford Golf and Country Club (short-term capital) $75,000 

BTEC Capital Grant $10,000 

River Valley Board $53,000 

Discretionary Third-Party Grants $60,000 
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2022 Budget Information – Continuous Improvement 

The primary focus in previous years has been cost reduction due to the impact of the pandemic on City 
finances and operations.  While the pandemic remains a serious concern, our focus has shifted from 
survival mode to stabilization and rebuild.  This means maintaining or improving current service levels 
while constraining controllable costs.  The City remains committed to continuous improvement in both 
financial and operational processes.  Financial improvements can be broken down into three 
categories: 

 Financial Improvements - changes that have improved the financial sustainability of the City’s 
operations going forward by reducing the ongoing cost of service. This includes efficiency 
improvements that enable us to defer funding increases. 
 

 Financial Management Improvements – accounting changes that have impacted the way the 
City’s accounting and financial processes are managed. 

 
 Levels of Service Improvement – changes impacting internal or external stakeholders within the 

corporation or property owners within City limits. 
 

Below you will find an updated status report on current City activities based on the categories noted 
above. 

1. Financial Improvements 
 

 Financial Purchasing Power:  
o Municipal Buying Group – leverage improved savings from programs offered by other 

municipalities, SUMA and national buying program. Currently exploring savings potential with 
the Canoe Procurement Group; 

 Tendering of City Services: 
o Investigating potential savings through tender for tire and oil suppliers as these are significant 

costs for the City 
 Facility Sustainability Improvements: 

o In 2022 we will be reviewing recent LED investment in City facilities to confirm net improved 
power costs and lower materials costs; 

o Energy usage review of City Hall planned in 2022 to identify potential savings; 
 Recent or New Revenue Sources: 

o Towing revenue sharing partnership implemented in 2020 with an estimate value of $40,000 is 
expected to bring in $49,000 for 2021;  

o Septic receiving station – once completed in 2022 there is potential for additional revenue as we 
could not track or charge for this type of service before; 
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2. Financial Management Improvements 
 

 Improved airport fuel accounting and systems – work continues to maximize revenues and minimize 
costs associated with the airport 

 Improved equity adjustments on fees and taxes charged: 
o Over 100 garbage and recycling bins not being billed 
o Property Taxation improvement – continue to correct numerous property errors such as missed 

additions, incorrect property assessments, missed secondary suites and incorrect taxation 
classifications.  As 2021 was a reassessment year, there have been many adjustments this year 
that will be reviewed further in 2022 

 Improved financial reporting processes: 
o Tax enforcement remains an important issue for the City as we work to improve our tax  

receivable balance.  Work to date has focused on the residential side but in 2022 the 
commercial portfolio will also be reviewed   
 

3. Levels of Service Improvement 
 

 Local group partnerships – numerous local organizations continue to enjoy improved financial 
performance by accessing City pricing and financial management knowledge; 

 Enhanced online payment capabilities for City services like pet licenses were added in 2021; 
 Implemented a text reminder program for utility customers that allows proactive communication 

notifying water users of potential disruptions prior to water being turned off. Further applications of this 
technology will be investigated for 2022. 
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Amortization reconciliation  
 
City of North Battleford
General Fund- Amortization Reconciliation
Forecast for the year ended December 31, 2022

% change 2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
as of Nov 8, 2021

2,546,059          2,942,016          12,024,703                 5,094,932          

Amortization (5,011,684)         -                         (5,123,518)         
(2,465,625)$       2,942,016$        12,024,703$               5,094,932$        

Utilities Fund - Amortization Reconciliation
Forecast for the year ended December 31, 2022

% change 2022 Budget 2021 Budget 2021 Actual 2020 Actual
Revenues as of Nov 8, 2021

Surplus / (Deficit) before Amortization 4,855,365          5,931,807          1,248,398                   (70,335)              

Amortization (1,993,291)         -                         (2,017,097)         
2,862,074          5,931,807          1,248,398$                 (70,335)              

Surplus / (Deficit) before Amortization

Surplus / (Deficit) with Amortization

Surplus / (Deficit) with Amortization  
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Reserves December 31, 2020 
 

Consolidated Schedule of Accumulated Surplus
for the year ended December 31, 2020

Schedule 7

2019 Changes 2020
Unappropriated Surplus (Deficit)

Government activities  $        9,848,075  $        3,300,225  $      13,148,300 
Water            1,830,170             (148,790)            1,681,378 
Sanitary sewer          (3,262,479)          (1,957,690)          (5,220,171)

Total Unappropriated Surplus (Deficit)            8,415,774            1,193,745            9,609,519 

Appropriated Surplus
General government 100,000             989                    100,989             
Fire and protective 1,234,617          59,885               1,294,502          
Operations 3,387,950          128,290             3,516,240          
Waste management 836,667             -                         836,667             
Planning & development (933,264)            264,181             (669,083)            
Policing initiatives 619,876             (158,256)            461,620             
Parks & Recreation 1,058,845          134,544             1,193,389          
Water 2,128,734          967,938             3,096,672          
Sanitary sewer 1,376,461          1,315,112          2,691,573          

Total Appropriated Surplus 9,809,884          2,712,684          12,522,569        

Net Investment in Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 5) 173,765,975      638,349             174,404,324      
Less: Related long term debt (36,346,912)       3,204,679          (33,142,233)       
Less: Related Lease and other obligations (528,011)            207,569             (320,442)            

Net Investment in Tangible Capital Assets 136,891,052      4,050,597          140,941,650      

Total Accumulated Surplus 155,116,710$    7,957,026$        163,073,737$     
 
  
 
 



Ten Year Capital Plan -  General Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Risk Rating 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) Software General Government Machinery & Equipment 15                 120,000        
Server Hardware General Government Machinery & Equipment 9                   60,000          
Firewalls General Government Machinery & Equipment 15                 35,000          
Server Rack General Government Machinery & Equipment 1                    10000
Photocopier General Government Machinery & Equipment 15                 10,000          
Temporary Council Chambers including electrical work and IT General Government Machinery & Equipment 25                 20,000          
Council Chambers - Phase 1 General Government Machinery & Equipment 25                 50,000          
Large Format Scanner General Government Machinery & Equipment 15                 13,000          
Annual capital renewal General Government Engineering Structure 25                 260,000        
Council Chambers - Phase 2 General Government Building 200,000         
App Server General Government Machinery & Equipment 10,000           
DC Server General Government Machinery & Equipment 20,000           
Point 2 Point General Government Machinery & Equipment 55,000           
Rennovation of City Hall Council Chambers General Government Building 60,000           
City Hall Copier General Government Machinery & Equipment 15,000           
SQL Server General Government Machinery & Equipment 50,000           
Firewalls General Government Machinery & Equipment 35,000           
Financial Statements software General Government Machinery & Equipment 30,000           
TS Server General Government Machinery & Equipment 45,000           45,000              
City Hall Copier 2 General Government Machinery & Equipment 10,000           10,000              
Firewalls General Government Machinery & Equipment 35,000             
App Server General Government Machinery & Equipment 10,000             
DC Server General Government Machinery & Equipment 20,000             
Point 2 Point General Government Machinery & Equipment 55,000             
Server Hardware General Government Machinery & Equipment 60,000           
Server Rack General Government Machinery & Equipment 10,000           
City Hall Copier General Government Machinery & Equipment 15,000           
SQL Server General Government Machinery & Equipment 50,000           
Backup and Archive Storage General Government Machinery & Equipment 15,000           15,000              

Battleford Road and HWY 16 Bypass - Service Road Upgrades Planning & Development Engineering Structure  600,000         
Sidewalk - 110th to Terrirtorial Phase 1 - 110th to Battleford Rd Planning & Development Engineering Structure 3                   120,000        
Sidewalk - 110th to Terrirtorial Phase 2 - Bford Rd to 114th StreetPlanning & Development Engineering Structure 120,000         
Sidewalk - Battleford Road to Railway Avenue Planning & Development Engineering Structure 350,000         
Alley/Walking Path 114th From 9th Ave to 13th Ave Planning & Development Engineering Structure 500,000         
Sidewalk - 110th to Terrirtorial Phase 3 - 114th Street to Territorial DrPlanning & Development Engineering Structure 120,000         
Transportation Master Plan #10 - McMillan Road Intersection Planning & Development Engineering Structure 200,000         
Yellow Sky Phase 1 - intersections upgrading and sanitary sewerPlanning & Development Engineering Structure 1,800,000      
Yellow Sky Phase 2 - Twinning Carlton Planning & Development Engineering Structure 1,800,000      
Yellow Sky Phase 3 - Lot Development - Moosomin Avenue Planning & Development Engineering Structure 13,000,000        
Repave East side of Territorial Dr Planning & Development Engineering Structure 30,000,000      
Fairview Heights  Master Plan Phase 2 Cul-de-sac servicing and roadPlanning & Development Engineering Structure 400,000           
Transportation Master Plan #11 - Railway Ave West and TerritorialPlanning & Development Engineering Structure 600,000           
Transportation Master Plan #2 - Railway Avenue East/Hwy 16 Planning & Development Engineering Structure 2,840,000      
1001-103rd Street Brownfield Remediation Planning & Development Engineering Structure 120,000         
Transportation Master Plan #1 - Hwy 4 South Traffic Circle DesignPlanning & Development Engineering Structure 500,000         
Transportation Master Plan #1 - Hwy 4 South Traffic Circle ConstructionPlanning & Development Engineering Structure 4,500,000         

Command Vehicle (Fire Chief) Fire & Protective Vehicle 60,000 70,000
Command Vehicle Fire & Protective Vehicle 60,000           70,000
Pumper Rescue Truck Fire & Protective Vehicle 850,000         
Aerial Ladder Truck L12 Fire & Protective Machinery & Equipment 2,000,000
Rescue Boat RB1 Fire & Protective Machinery & Equipment 55,000
Pumper Truck E23 Fire & Protective Vehicle 900,000
35KW Cummins 3DSFAA Generator on trailer (airport) Fire & Protective Machinery & Equipment 40,000
P25 Radios Replacement Fire & Protective Machinery & Equipment 125,000         125,000         
Parking Lot Resurface and base repair Fire & Protective Engineering Structure  40,000           

Bylaw vehicle replacement Municipal Enforcement Vehicle  65,000           65,000           
Bylaw vehicle replacement Municipal Enforcement Vehicle  65,000           65,000              



Ten Year Capital Plan -  General Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Risk Rating 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Bylaw vehicle replacement Municipal Enforcement Vehicle 65,000           65,000              
Bylaw vehicle replacement Municipal Enforcement Vehicle 65,000           

1 ton 4x4 truck with service body (non designated) Operations Vehicle 75,000                 
Tractor for the nursery  Nursery  Unit 1524 Operations Machinery & Equipment 37,500              
Cemetery zero turn grass mowers Operations Machinery & Equipment 9 25,000              
Cemetery zero turn grass mowers Operations Machinery & Equipment 25,000              
Boiler Truck Chasis Operations Machinery & Equipment 50,000                   
Acreage Tractor Operations Machinery & Equipment 60,000
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 9 50,000              
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 50,000              
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 50,000              
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 50,000              
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 50000
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 50,000                   
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 50,000                 
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 50,000              
Airport Security Fencing Project (over 10 years) Operations Land improvement 50,000                  
Airport runway signs and lighting Operations Machinery & Equipment 900,000               
Out Front Mower Operations Machinery & Equipment 26,000
Sweeper Operations Vehicle 300,000            
Tandem Truck complete with box Operations Machinery & Equipment 225,000               
Tandem Truck complete with box Operations Machinery & Equipment 225,000            
Cemetery Backhoe Operations Machinery & Equipment 175,000            
1/2 ton 4-wheel drive crew cab truck Operations Vehicle 45,000                  
1/2 ton crew cab 4 x 4 pickup truck Operations Vehicle 45000
1/2 ton  4 x 4 pickup truck Operations Vehicle 45,000              
Out front mower Operations Machinery & Equipment 26,000              
Side by side vehicle for City Cemetary Operations Machinery & Equipment 25,000              
Side by side vehicle woodlawn Operations Machinery & Equipment 25,000              
Rivervalley RTV (groomer) Operations Machinery & Equipment 15 35,000              
1 Ton vehicle Operations Machinery & Equipment 45,000              
1 ton 4 x 4 unit 1226 with dump Operations Machinery & Equipment 60,000              
Tractorr 30 hp, belly mower unit 1426 Operations Machinery & Equipment 35,000
Asphalt Recycler Operations Machinery & Equipment 3 130,000           
Covered Salt Shed (Salt) Operations Machinery & Equipment 200,000            
Thatch Vacuum Operations Machinery & Equipment 40,000              
Air Compressor unit 432 Operations Machinery & Equipment 35,000                   
1/2 ton crew cab truck 4 x 4 Operations Vehicle 50,000              
1/2 ton crew cab truck 4 x 4 Operations Vehicle 50,000              
1/2 ton crew cab truck 4 x 4 Operations Vehicle 50,000              
1/2 ton crew cab truck 4 x 4 Operations Vehicle 50,000              
1/2 ton crew cab truck 4 x 4 Operations Vehicle 55,000              
1/2 ton crew cab truck 4 x 4 Operations Vehicle 55,000              
1/2 ton crew cab truck 4 x 4 Operations Vehicle 55,000              
1/2 ton crew cab truck 4 x 4 Operations Vehicle 55,000              
Drainage issues for the 110th Street Building Operations building 15 150,000           
Airport Maintenance Shop renovation (over head doors, etc) Operations Building 9 115,000           
Signal Installation Territorial Dr & Co-op & Sobey Operations Engineered Structure 9 250,000           
New Grader Operations Machinery & Equipment 320,000            
New Snowblower and sweeper (airport) Operations Machinery & Equipment 350,000            
City Hall Roof Replacement Operations Building 475,000            
602 110th Street Roof Replacement Operations Building 360,000            
Public Library Roof Replacement Section 1 of 4 Operations Building 575,000            
Trackless vehicle c/w sidewalk snow plow Operations Machinery & Equipment  150,000            
Stair Climber  Operations Machinery & Equipment 15 30,000              
Bucket Truck (Traffic Lights) Operations Vehicle 200,000               
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 9 60,000              
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 60,000              
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 60,000              
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 60,000              
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 60,000              



Ten Year Capital Plan -  General Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Risk Rating 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 60,000                   
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 60,000                 
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 80,000              
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 80,000                  
Signal Lights camera, relamping, new batteries Operations Machinery & Equipment 80,000                  
Sidewalk Replacement 2022 Operations Engineered Structure 15 100,000           
Sidewalk Replacement 2023 Operations Engineered Structure 150,000            
Sidewalk Replacement 2024 Operations Engineered Structure 200,000            
Sidewalk Replacement 2025 Operations Engineered Structure 300,000            
Sidewalk Replacement 2026 Operations Engineered Structure 400,000            
Sidewalk Replacement 2027 Operations Engineered Structure 500,000                
Sidewalk Replacement 2028 Operations Engineered Structure 500,000               
Sidewalk Replacement 2029 Operations Engineered Structure 500,000            
Sidewalk Replacement 2030 Operations Engineered Structure 500,000                
Sidewalk Replacement 2031 Operations Engineered Structure 500,000                
Sidewalk Replacement 2032 Operations Engineered Structure
Sidewalk Replacement 2033 Operations Engineered Structure
Sidewalk Replacement 2034 Operations Engineered Structure
Improve and upgrade electrical power to operations shop Operations Machinery & Equipment 200,000            
Power Sliding Gate (Operation Shop) Operations Machinery & Equipment 20,000              
Power Sliding Gate (Operation Shop) Operations Machinery & Equipment 20,000              
Reconstruction of Wearing Road Operations Machinery & Equipment 15 100,000           
Exhaust ventilation at shop Operations Machinery & Equipment 25,000              
Public Works Shop Improvements 109th Street Operations Building  175,000            
New Operations Offices/Shops Operations New
Bobcat cleanup bucket Operations Machinery & Equipment 1 8,000                
Remote Slope Lawn Mower Operations Machinery & Equipment 15 75,000              

WMF Shop/Office/Staff room/Repair gararge Waste Management Building 5 750,000         
New Compactor Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 900,000         
Used Roll off Truck Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 100,000         
Power Sliding Gate (WMF) Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 9 20,000          
Waste Mangment Trailer Waste Management Building 25,000          
4 Wind Screen Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 40,000           
4 Wind Screen Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 40,000              
4 Wind Screen Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 40,000              
4 Wind Screen Waste Management Machinery & Equipment
Second Wiegh scale at the WMF Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 2,000,000        
Construction of the 4th landfill cell Waste Management Land Improvements
GPS Compaction and Tracking System Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 50,000           
RF Rollout Cart reader  Second Truck Waste Management Machinery & Equipment 40,000           

Allen Sapp Gallery-
Boiler Replacement Recreation Machinery & Equipment 100,000         
Blinds- Customized Window Coverings-main floor only Recreation Building 15 6,000            7,000             
Upgrade bottom floor- proper exhibit area Recreation Building
Art Walk- Sculptures Recreation Machinery & Equipment 25,000           
Vault at DRC Recreation Machinery & Equipment 150,000         
Front end of Cornice repairs Recreation Building 106,000         
Access Communications Centre
Reconditioning Plan Building
Zamboni replacement Recreation Machinery & Equipment 200,000             
Concession Upgrade- Upstairs Hot Stove Lounge Recreation Building 30,000           
Access Communications Centre Chiller Recreation Machinery & Equipment 95,000           
Access Communications Centre Ice Plant Recreation Machinery & Equipment 865,000         
Don Ross Arena-
Ice Plant- 1/2 saved in 2022, work done in 2023 with remainder Recreation Machinery & Equipment 25  430,000         435,000         
Heating System Replacement Recreation Building 550,000         
Rubber Flooring Replaced Recreation Machinery & Equipment 80,000           55,000           
Score Clock Replaced Recreation Machinery & Equipment 15 60,000          
Exit doors Recreation Building 25 25,000          



Ten Year Capital Plan -  General Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Risk Rating 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Nations West Fieldhouse-
Artifical Turf replaced Recreation Machinery & Equipment 150,000         
Murals - internal & painting Recreation Building 30,000           
Metal Cladding Installed- interior Recreation Building 9 55,000          
Floor Wash machine Recreation Machinery & Equipment 35,000           
Security cameras system replacement Recreation Machinery & Equipment 25,000           
Court Floor covering Recreation Building 30,000           
COOP Aquatic Centre-
Electrical Upgrades- basement Recreation Building 15 35,000          
Upgrade drinking fountains to water bottle fountains Recreation Building 6,000             
Replace deck and facility chairs Recreation Building 25,000           
Paint Facility 50,000           
Floor Washer Recreation Machinery & Equipment 20,000             
Don Ross Community Centre-
Rooftop/Air Handler units replaced Recreation Building 9 11,000          12,000           13,000           13,000           13,000              
Gym Floor Replaced (Asbestos) Recreation Building 75,000           
A/C in gym Recreation Machinery & Equipment 80,000           
Demolition of White Bldg & reno of brick building Recreation Building 75,000           
Paint Facility Recreation Building 60,000           
Replace flooring in Facility Recreation Building 125,000         
Curling Rink-
Heat Reclaim system Recreation Building 80,000           
Kitchen Equipment replaced Recreation Machinery & Equipment 20,000           
Dekker Centre-
Paint Facility Recreation Building 90,000           
Replace carpeting Recreation Building 45,000           45,000           
Lighting Upgrade Recreation Building 80,000               
Dressing Room Lighting Fixtures Replaced Recreation Machinery & Equipment 10,000           
Parks-
Irrigation System Replacement Parks Engineering Structure 15 50,000          50,000           50,000           40,000           40,000           
Bleachers Parks Machinery & Equipment   11,000           11,000           
Full shale replacement- Beaver Lions Stadium Parks Machinery & Equipment 25 40,000          
Park Benches and Picnic Tables Parks Building 9 15,000          15,000           15,000           
Playground/Splash Park Structure Replacement Parks Machinery & Equipment 3 10,000          10,000           10,000           10,000           
Gazebos for Parks Parks Building 3 13,000          26,000           27,000           27,000           
BL Stadium Storage Shed Parks Building 9 6,000            
Centennial Park- Seniors Fitness Equipment Parks Machinery & Equipment 15,000           
Cemetery Columbarium Parks Building 15 25,000          
Ball Diamond washroom upgrades Kinsmen Park) Parks Building 15 6,000            
Trails Master Plan Parks Land Improvement 40,000           
Tennis Court Windscreen Replaced Parks Building 9 7,300            
Tree Replacement Reserve Parks Land Improvement 15 20,000          40,000           50,000           75,000           75,000           75,000               75,000             75,000           75,000              
Trail Interpretative Signage (not River Valley) Parks Machinery & Equipment 15,000           15,000              
Parks- David Laird Campground
Change house rejuvenation Parks Building 80,000           
Add sites& lane/remove sites that are under water Parks Land Improvement 80,000           
Replace Septic Tanks (2) Parks Machinery & Equipment 70,000           

Total Capital Assets on proposed Budget 2,245,300$   4,511,000$    6,854,500$    6,586,000$    3,440,000$    14,090,000$      36,125,000$    5,435,000$    5,410,000$       785,000$          

PROJECTS FUNDED BY EXISTING GAS TAX 
Access Communication Centre - Concession Roof Replacement Recreation Building 15 70,000          
Aquatic Centre  - Roof Replacement Recreation Building 25 800,000        
Dekker Centre Roof Replacement Recreation Building 25 420,000        
Signal Installation Territorial Dr & Co-op & Sobey Operations Engineered Structure 9 750,000           
Total Capital Assets funded by existing Gas Tax 2,040,000$      

Total Capital Assets to be completed in 2022 4,285,300        



2022 Capital Plan -  General Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Risk Rating 2022

ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) Software General Government Machinery & Equipment 15                 120,000        
Server Hardware General Government Machinery & Equipment 9                   60,000          
Firewalls General Government Machinery & Equipment 15                 35,000          
Photocopier General Government Machinery & Equipment 15                 10,000          
Temporary Council Chambers including electrical work and IT General Government Machinery & Equipment 25                 20,000          
Council Chambers - Phase 1 General Government Machinery & Equipment 25                 50,000          
Large Format Scanner General Government Machinery & Equipment 15                 13,000          
Annual capital renewal General Government Engineering Structure 25                 260,000        

Total Capital Assets on proposed Budget 568,000$      



City of North Battleford
Capital Budget Request

Project Name: Division: Business Unit: City Hall

Requester: Asset Type: Prior Year
Date Requested: Asset Category: re-Budget?

Project Questions: (Yes/No) Comment, if required

Is the project multi-year in scope? Yes
Are cost savings anticipated? Yes

Are revenues anticipated? No
Has external funding been secured? No

Priority area of strategic plan:
Project Description/Summary:

Benefit of project/capital purchase:

Financial Information/Estimated Capital Costs: ($ CDN)

Total Cost
Major project costs:

250,000$                        
-$                                 
-$                                 

250,000$                        
(B) Funding Sources:

-$                                 
-$                                 
-$                                 

250,000$                        

Prepared by: Director responsible:

Date: Date:

Reviewed by Finance:

2025

-$                             

2024

Brent Nadon Brent Nadon

November 5 2021November 5 2021

External funding, i.e. grants
Taxation required (A - B) -$                      130,000$                     120,000$                    -$                             -$                          

2022

120,000$                    

120,000$                    

130,000$                     

The City's ERP software is showing its age and inability to provide timely information or 
handle increasingly complex situations.  The current system is not user friendly, based on 
an old IT architechture and does not connect easily with  newer siftware products we are 
using. Vadim has been purchased and sold two different times over the last 4 years and 
the new owners are increasing the fee levels while the customer service and product 
quality has not kept up.

General Government

Other

Capital reserve/carry forward

Less prior year spent

Brent Nadon
November 5, 2021

Replacement
Machinery & Equipment

130,000$                     

2023

Pros: Creating a more secure, efficient and modern work environment that will allow us to 
reduce manual data entry and manipulation, implement more efficient and effective 
processes and improve reporting on many city activities.

Cons: Upfront Cost and the significant efforts to manage a major system change

2021

Other project costs, if any
Capital purchase

ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) 
Software

-$                      

Sale of asset, if applicable
-$                      

(A) Total Capital cost -$                          

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
The replacement of the City's ERP software will allow for improved productivity across 
many city functions and processes, and greater flexibility and capability around reporting 
for staff and Council.  The current owner has identified that they will not be investing 
money into the software to fix known deficiencies within the software.



City of North Battleford
Capital Budget Request

Project Name: Division: Business Unit:

Requester: Asset Type: Prior Year
Date Requested: Asset Category: re-Budget?

Project Questions: (Yes/No) Comment, if required

Is the project multi-year in scope? No
Are cost savings anticipated? No
Are revenues anticipated? No
Has external funding been secured? No

Priority area of strategic plan: Insert Picture here, if applicable
Project Description/Summary:

Benefit of project/capital purchase:

Risk Management Rating 9

Financial Information/Estimated Capital Costs: ($ CDN)

Total Cost
Major project costs:

60,000.00$      
-$                   
-$                   

60,000.00$      
(B) Funding Sources:

-$                   
-$                   
-$                   

60,000.00$      

Prepared by: Director responsible:

Date: Date:

Reviewed by Finance:

Daniel Aucamp Jennifer Niesink

September 13 2021September 13 2021

The server hardware is the physical servers and storage SAN that power the virtual 
environment. The physical server hardware usually has a duty cycle of about 5 years 
as our primary set and a further 5-7 years as our secondary set.  Our current primary  
hardware set is on year 6 and our secondary set is on year 11.  The current primary 
set will become the secondary set once we purchase a new hardware set.

Benefits of renewing our hardware: Reduced risk of hardware failure and potential 
down time, performance and security from new technology,  and improve efficiency 
and increased capacity to keep up with the growth of the organization.

Pros: 

Cons: Upfront Cost.

External funding, i.e. grants

Other project costs, if any
Capital purchase

2023

-$                           

60,000.00$               

2022 2024

Server Hardware

-$                           

Sale of asset, if applicable

City HallGeneral Government

Quality Infrastructure

Capital reserve/carry forward

Less prior year spent

Daniel Aucamp
September 13, 2021

Replacement
Machinery & Equipment

60,000.00$               

20262025

-$                     -$                    

Taxation required (A - B)

(A) Total Capital cost

-$                    60,000.00$               -$                           -$                           -$                     

Risk

High 5 15 25
Medium 3 9 15
Low 1 3 5

Low Medium High

Severity















2022 Capital Plan -  General Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Risk Rating 2022

Sidewalk - 110th to Terrirtorial Phase 1 - 110th to Battleford Rd Planning & Development Engineering Structure 3                   120,000        

Total Capital Assets on proposed Budget 120,000$      













































































Ten Year Capital Plan -  Utility Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Project Year Risk Rating 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Sewer Force Main Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2022 25 6,465,510      
WWTP HVAC Replacement Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2022 15 70,000            
Sanitary Sewer Masterplan piping upgrades  (not incl. Force Main Trunk)  Planning Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2022
Relining Stormwater Sewer Storm Sewer Engineered Structure 2022 15 100,000          
Hydrovac Truck Positive Displacement Pump Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2022 15 750,000          
Sewer Force Main Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2023 1,645,510      
Design and Paving at WWTP Phase 1 Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2023 20,000            
Sanitary Sewer Masterplan piping upgrades  (not incl. Force Main Trunk)  Planning Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2023
2023 SCADA computer Upgrades Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2023 25,000            
2023 VTSCADA conversion Sanitary Sewer 2023 100,000          
Changing fibreglass grating and kickplates (Second Stage, bio-reactor) Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2024 400,000             
Paving at WWTP Phase 2 Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2024 20,000               
Sanitary Sewer Masterplan piping upgrades  (not incl. Force Main Trunk)  Planning Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2024
Lagoon Sumpage Dredging Sanitary Sewer 2024 100,000             
Review of WWTP heating system Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2024 100,000             
Dredging of lagoons Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2024 100,000             
Ultraviolet Lamp Upgrade Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2025 650,000        
Phosphorous Removal (Chemical Treatment) Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2025
Paving at WWTP Phase 3 Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2025 20,000          
Sanitary Sewer Masterplan piping upgrades  (not incl. Force Main Trunk) Planning Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2025
Paving at WWTP Phase 5 Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2026 20,000            
Sanitary Sewer Masterplan piping upgrades  (not incl. Force Main Trunk)  Planning Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2026
Increase Influent pumps and VFD $450,000 Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2026 450,000          
Lagoon Sumpage Meter Dumping Station Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2026 350,000          
Reconstruction of the Parson Industrial Park  Lift Station Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2026 1,200,000       
Backup Power at Parson Insustrial Park Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2026 300,000          
New Heating Pipes Mains at the WWTP Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2026 200,000          
Paving at WWTP Phase 6 Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2027 20,000          
Waste Water Plant Clarifier Covers Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2028 250,000        
Additional screen in headworks bypass channel $200,000 Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2028 200,000        
4th tray in headcell $20,000 Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2028 20,000          
2028 SCADA computer Upgrades Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2028 20,000          
Backup Power at SEQ Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2028 300,000        
Fine bubble diffuser replacement Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2030 300,000        

Replacement Well #30 Water Engineered Structure 2022 500,000          
Replacement of John East Hydrants  2022 Water Engineered Structure 2022 15 80,000            
FE Holliday Backwash Sump Drain Pipe Addition Water Engineered Structure 2022 9 40,000            
FE Electrical Panel addition Water Engineered Structure 2022 9 20,000            
WTP1 Ventilation System Service Walkway Water Engineered Structure 2022 9 20,000            
Backup Generator at Fairview Reservoir and removal of gas pumps Water Machinery & Equipment 2022 25 350,000          
Water Distribution Masterplan Piping upgrades (non plant) - New line Douglas to Person AveWater Engineered Structure 2022 15 350,000          
Water pressure at Borden and Laurier Cres Water Engineered Structure 2022 15 100,000          
Water Distribution Masterplan Piping upgrades (non plant) Water Engineered Structure 2023 2,000,000      
Replacement of John East Hydrants  2023 Water Engineered Structure 2023 85,000            
FE Holliday WTP Backup Power Generator Water Machinery & Equipment 2023 600,000          
Leak Detection Equipment Water Machinery & Equipment 2023 30,000            
Fairview Reservoir Ventilation System Water Machinery & Equipment 2023 20,000            
Water Distribution Masterplan Piping upgrades (non plant) Water Engineered Structure 2024 2,000,000          
Replacement of John East Hydrants  2024 Water Engineered Structure 2024 85,000               
Killdeer Park Pressure Sustaining Valve Water Machinery & Equipment 2024 40,000               
Actiflo at FE Holliday Water Treatment Plant Water Machinery & Equipment 2024 1,750,000          
Insulation of Water Tower Fill Pipe Water Engineered Structure 2024 200,000             
Water Distribution Masterplan Piping upgrades (non plant) Water Engineered Structure 2025 2,000,000     
Replacement of John East Hydrants  2025 Water Engineered Structure 2025 90,000          
2025 SCADA computer Upgrades Water Machinery & Equipment 2025 25,000          
FE Electrical Switchgear Upgrade - North Bank Water Machinery & Equipment 2025 400,000        
Backup generator at WTP#1 and well field. Water Machinery & Equipment 2025 1,500,000     
Water Distribution Masterplan Piping upgrades (non plant) Water Engineered Structure 2026 2,000,000       
Replacement of John East Hydrants  2026 Water Engineered Structure 2026 90,000            
New Storage Reservoir complete with pumps. (114th Street - 5,000 m3) Water Building 2026 8,000,000       
FE Holliday Filters 1 & 2 Influent Piping Replacement Water Engineered Structure 2026 200,000          



Ten Year Capital Plan -  Utility Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Project Year Risk Rating 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Water Distribution Masterplan Piping upgrades (non plant) Water Engineered Structure 2027 2,000,000     
Replacement Well #31 Water Engineered Structure 2027 500,000        
Replacement of John East Hydrants  2027 Water Engineered Structure 2027 90,000          
SaskHospital Reservoir Renovations Phase 2 AECOM Water Engineered Structure 2027 1,000,000     
FE Holliday control room Water Machinery & Equipment 2027 1 30,000            
Water Distribution Masterplan Piping upgrades (non plant) Water Engineered Structure 2028 2,000,000     
River Bank Stabilization  Water Engineered Structure 2028 175,000        
New piping from Canola to Hereford Street Water Engineered Structure 2028 400,000        
WTP#1 Valve Service Platform  (Design 1st year, construction 2nd year) Water Engineered Structure 2028 30,000          250,000        
Fairview reservoir upgrade of pumps and fill and discharge piping Water Engineered Structure 2029 4,500,000     
Replacement Well #32 Water Engineered Structure 2030 600,000        
FE Holliday WTP Heating System Water Machinery & Equipment 2030 250,000        
2030 SCADA computer Upgrades Water Machinery & Equipment 2030 20,000          
Upgrading distribution pump at 114th Street for airport line Water Engineered Structure 2031 60,000          
Dedicated waterline from 114th Street to the airport Water Engineered Structure 2031 200,000        
Road work to the wells, Phase 1 Water Engineered Structure 2031 300,000        

Total Sewer 7,385,510      1,790,510      720,000             670,000        2,520,000       20,000          790,000        -                300,000        -                
Total Water 990,000          3,235,000      4,075,000          4,015,000     10,290,000     3,590,000     2,605,000     4,750,000     870,000        560,000        



2022 Capital Plan -  Utility Fund

Name of project / purchase Division Asset Type Project Year Risk Rating 2022

Sewer Force Main Sanitary Sewer Engineered Structure 2022 25 6,465,510      
WWTP HVAC Replacement Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2022 15 70,000            
Relining Stormwater Sewer Storm Sewer Engineered Structure 2022 15 100,000          
Hydrovac Truck Positive Displacement Pump Sanitary Sewer Machinery & Equipment 2022 15 750,000          

Replacement of John East Hydrants  2022 Water Engineered Structure 2022 15 80,000            
FE Holliday Backwash Sump Drain Pipe Addition Water Engineered Structure 2022 9 40,000            
FE Electrical Panel addition Water Engineered Structure 2022 9 20,000            
WTP1 Ventilation System Service Walkway Water Engineered Structure 2022 9 20,000            
Backup Generator at Fairview Reservoir and removal of gas pumps Water Machinery & Equipment 2022 25 350,000          
Water Distribution Masterplan Piping upgrades (non plant) - New line Douglas to Person AveWater Engineered Structure 2022 15 350,000          
Water pressure at Borden and Laurier Cres Water Engineered Structure 2022 15 100,000          
FE Holliday control room Water Machinery & Equipment 2027 1 30,000            

Total Sewer 7,385,510      
Total Water 990,000          
Total 8,375,510      



























Underground Pipe and Asphalt Replacement Program (UPAR)

Name of project / purchase Division
Fund 

source 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
CIPP Lining Water Levy

Sewer Levy
Roads Levy

Engineering Fees Water Levy 40,852 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Sewer Levy 40,852 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Roads Levy 40,582 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000

102nd Street Railway to 16th Avenue Water Levy 671,000
Sewer Levy 457,000
Roads Levy 2,861,786

14th Avenue: 102nd -104th Street Water Levy 225,000
Sewer Levy 225,000
Roads Levy 530,000

15th avenue: 99th-100th Street Water Levy 112,500
Sewer Levy 112,500
Roads Levy 265,000

106th Street 900 block, 1100 block and 1300 block Water Levy 550,000
Sewer Levy 225,000
Roads Levy 795,000

98th Street 1100-1500 Water Levy 780,000
Sewer Levy 450,000
Roads Levy 1,185,000

Thatcher Avenue Overlay Water Levy
Sewer Levy
Roads Levy 1,105,000

104th Street 800-1500 Water Levy 860,000
Sewer Levy 550,000
Roads Levy 2,010,000

Marquis Overlay and main repairs Water Levy 80,000
Sewer Levy 80,000
Roads Levy 373,750

Aberdeen Overlay Water Levy
Sewer Levy
Roads Levy 195,000               

8th Avenue 105th Street to 111th Street Water Levy 337,500               
Sewer Levy 537,500               
Roads Levy 1,425,000            

103rd Street 900-1400 Water Levy 465,000               
Sewer Levy 225,000               
Roads Levy 1,590,000            



Name of project / purchase Division
Fund 

source 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

99th Street 1300-1500 Water Levy 30,000                 
Sewer Levy
Roads Levy 795,000               

107th Street 700-900, 1100-1300 Water Levy 770,000               
Sewer Levy 337,500               
Roads Levy 1,350,000            

Shorthorn Overlay Water Levy
Sewer Levy
Roads Levy 292,500               

Holstein Overlay Water Levy
Sewer Levy
Roads Levy 130,000               

110th Street 600-1100 Water Levy 675,000               
Sewer Levy 562,500               
Roads Levy 1,590,000            

110th Street 1200-1800 Water Levy 437,500               
Sewer Levy 412,500               
Roads Levy 1,855,000            

4,112,072            3,465,000            3,265,000            3,645,000            3,825,000            3,331,250            2,812,500            3,052,500            2,930,000            



Unbudgeted Requests 
2022 Budget 

Item Department Amount

Operating Budget
On-Call staffing Operations 20,000              
Roadways Seasonal Workers Public Works 100,000            
Replacement of Decorative Lighting Operations 200,000            
Parks Seasonal Workers Parks 30,355              



City of North Battleford
Unbudgeted Capital Budget Request

Project Name: Division: Business Unit:

Requester: Asset Type: Prior Year
Date Requested: Asset Category: re-Budget?

Project Questions: (Yes/No) Comment, if required
Is the project multi-year in scope? No
Are cost savings anticipated? Yes

Are revenues anticipated? No
Has external funding been secured? No

Priority area of strategic plan:
Project Description/Summary:

Benefit of project/capital purchase:

Risk Management Rating 15

Financial Information/Estimated Capital Costs: ($ CDN)

Total Cost
Major project costs:

20,000.00$      
-$                  
-$                  

20,000.00$      
(B) Funding Sources:

-$                  
-$                  
-$                  

20,000.00$      

Prepared by: Director responsible:

Date: Date:

Reviewed by Finance:

October 12, 2021October 7, 2021

Over the past several years, the on-call phone has been passed from employees in 
both the Waterworks and Roadways Department.  When a call is received requesting 
a call out, the person on-call is required find a second person to attend the after 
hours call out.  In several cases, that second person is from the same department.  

However, as the needs of the City have diversified, and as a result of stricter changes 
in the Federal and Provincial regulations for each department, the work by each 
department has become more specialized.  This has resulted in the on-call 
employees from one department, no longer having a proper working knowledge of 
the procedures required to conduct the work of the other department which has 
caused mistakes to happen during after-hour call outs and insurance claims being 
brought forward against the City.  

Administration is proposing that an on-call worker from each department be on 
standby to address any issues that need to be corrected, and to ensure the on-call 
request can properly documented and safely addressed. 

The two person on-call system will ensure that the proper on-call work is done and 
documented, resulting in less claims against the City.  In addition, with the second 
person the issue of safety on the job is greatly enhanced, reducing possible injury to 
our workers and Occupational Health and Safety claims.

External funding, i.e. grants

Other project costs, if any
Capital purchase 20,000.00$               

2022

Mark Keller Stewart Schafer

-$                          

20262025

On-Call Staffing Increase

Pros:   
There would always be two staff members available to handle after hours 
emergencies, one person from the Waterworks Department and one person from 
the Roadways Department. Each call-out would have the required expertise and 
knowledge to successfully deal with either Roadways or Waterworks situations and 
protocols.  
The change in service would also increase response times as 2 people will be on-call 
already, eliminating the time it takes to find an available second person to assist with 
the call-out.
Cons:
The overall staff cost increase will be $14,604.21 with the staff on-call rotation 
changing from once every 20 weeks to once every 13-weeks for Roadways crew and 
once every 7-weeks for the Waterworks crew.  
In addition, another cellular telephone will have to be activated for the second on-
call staff member.

Waterworks

2023

Operation Services

Quality Infrastructure

Capital reserve/carry forward

Less prior year spent

Joe Gagne
August 17, 2021

Betterment

20,000.00$              

Less insurance claims against 
the City

2024

-$                    -$                     -$                          

Taxation required (A - B)

(A) Total Capital cost

Sale of asset, if applicable

-$                    20,000.00$              -$                          -$                          -$                     

Risk

High 5 15 25
Medium 3 9 15
Low 1 3 5

Low Medium High

Severity



City of North Battleford
Unbudgeted Capital Budget Request

Project Name: Division: Business Unit:

Requester: Asset Type: Prior Year
Date Requested: Asset Category: re-Budget?

Project Questions: (Yes/No) Comment, if required
Is the project multi-year in scope? No
Are cost savings anticipated? No
Are revenues anticipated? No
Has external funding been secured? No

Priority area of strategic plan: Insert Picture here, if applicable
Project Description/Summary:

Benefit of project/capital purchase:

Risk Management Rating 3

Financial Information/Estimated Capital Costs: ($ CDN)

Total Cost
Major project costs:

100,000$          
-$                   
-$                   

100,000$          
(B) Funding Sources:

-$                   
-$                   
-$                   

100,000$          

Prepared by: Director responsible:

Date: Date:

Reviewed by Finance:

RoadsRoadways Seasonals

Taxation required (A - B)

(A) Total Capital cost

-$                    100,000$                  -$                          -$                          -$                     

-$                    -$                     

Sale of asset, if applicable

Operation Services

Governance Excellence/Citizen Focused Services

Capital reserve/carry forward

Less prior year spent

Colin Carriere
August 17, 2021

Betterment

100,000$                  -$                          

20262024 20252023

-$                          

100,000$                  

2022

Stewart Schafer Stewart Schafer

October 8, 2021October 8, 2021

During the summer months, the majority of Roadway Department repairs occur 
requiring all staff members to participate.  In some case three to four crews are 
assigned specific tasks to be completed, while in other cases, such as the crack sealing 
of Territorial Drive, all of the Roadways Department staff must participate to 
complete the project.  However, in the summer most of the staff wish to take 
holidays with their families.  To meet both demands, the City has hired seasonal staff 
to work along side Roadways staff, allowing permanent staff to take scheduled 
holiday time, while the work continues.

In 2022, The Roadways Department Supervisor is requesting 4 seasonal staff be hired 
to assist in completing the scheduled work for the summer season.     

The benefit of the seasonal staff is that major project can be completed while full-
time staff are able to take their scheduled holidays.

Pros:  The seasonal workers will allow City projects to be completed while allowing 
full time Roadways crew to take their holidays during the summer months.

Cons:  The wages and benefits for the seasonal employees. 

External funding, i.e. grants

Other project costs, if any
Capital purchase

Risk

High 5 15 25
Medium 3 9 15
Low 1 3 5

Low Medium High

Severity



City of North Battleford
Unbudgeted Capital Budget Request

Project Name: Division: Business Unit:

Requester: Asset Type: Prior Year
Date Requested: Asset Category: re-Budget?

Project Questions: (Yes/No) Comment, if required

Is the project multi-year in scope? No
Are cost savings anticipated? Yes
Are revenues anticipated? No
Has external funding been secured? No

Priority area of strategic plan: Insert Picture here, if applicable
Project Description/Summary:

Benefit of project/capital purchase:

Risk Management Rating 3

Financial Information/Estimated Capital Costs: ($ CDN)

Total Cost
Major project costs:

200,000$         
-$                   
-$                   

200,000$         
(B) Funding Sources:

-$                   
-$                   
-$                   

200,000$         

Prepared by: Director responsible:

Date: Date:

Reviewed by Finance:

Stewart Schafer Stewart Schafer

July 7, 2021July 7, 2021

The existing water tower decorative lighting system was installed in 2008. The 
lighting update was a community project to replace incandescent bulb system that 
had been installed for the City's 75th celebration.  The current wiring, which was 
designed to last 10-years, has become brittle resulting in the electrical wire cable to 
break and short out.  Over the past few years, the City has had to hire contractors 
several times to climb to the top of the water tower bowl to reattach and/or repair 
the electrical wiring system.
The project involves the replacement of the wiring system including the LED lights.  
The City may also wish to consider a way of programming the lights to flash in 
sequence during special event or change colours.  Again, this would have to be 
decided during the design stage for the replacement of the lights. 

Overtime the lights on the water tower have become a community symbol 
representing North Battleford.  By changing the lights, the tower should remain lit for 
another 10 years or longer.     

Pros:   Reduced maintenance costs.  

Cons:  The cost to replace the existing lights.

External funding, i.e. grants

Other project costs, if any
Capital purchase

2023

-$                          

200,000$                  

2022 2025 20262024

Sale of asset, if applicable

Operation Services

Quality Infrastructure

Capital reserve/carry forward

Less prior year spent

Stewart Schafer
July 7, 2021

Replacement
Engineered Structures

200,000$                  

Reduced Maintenance

Replacement of 
Decorative Lighting

-$                          -$                    -$                     

Building Infrastructure

Taxation required (A - B)

(A) Total Capital cost

-$                    200,000$                  -$                          -$                          -$                     

Risk

High 5 15 25
Medium 3 9 15
Low 1 3 5

Low Medium High

Severity



City of North Battleford
2022 Capital UNBUDGETED Request

Project Name: Division: Business Unit:

Requester: Asset Type: Prior Year
Date Requested: Asset Category: re-Budget?

Project Questions: (Yes/No) Comment, if required

Is the project multi-year in scope? No
Are cost savings anticipated? No
Are revenues anticipated? No
Has external funding been secured? No

Priority area of strategic plan:
Project Description/Summary:

Benefit of project/capital purchase:

25

Financial Information/Estimated Capital Costs: ($ CDN)

Total Cost
Major project costs:

30,355$           
-$                  
-$                  

30,355$           
(B) Funding Sources:

-$                  
-$                  
-$                  

30,355$           

Prepared by: Director responsible:

Date: Date:

Reviewed by Finance:

Gord Whitton Cheryl DeNeire

Nov. 4 2021Nov. 8 2021

The Parks Department requires 2 more seasonal positions (17 weeks) May 16 to 
September 9. The total cost of this request is $30,355 (based on 2019 CUPE287 rates 
including benefits and vacation pay). The Parks Department has reduced its staffing 
from 36 to 18 in the past 6 years. In 2021, we were able to add 3 positions by utilizing 
the operators from the Access Communications Centre due to the cancellation of 
programming as a result of Covid-19 restrictions. The 2022 budget currently includes 
18 positions. Parks is also now responsible for the maintenance of the cenotaph 
grounds at the Sask Hospital. The current complement breaksdown as follows:  4 
forestry crews, 4 ball diamond/sportsfields crews, 1 downtown area crew, 3 
flowers/watering crews, 6 greenspace crews along the urban corridor and facilities.  
This does not include any project work, tree removals, or requests for set 
up/takedown of events. In 2022 Parks has the following projects slated: the 
completion of the rest stop area at Destination Battlefords, the changeout of the 
shale (this would be contracted but prep work will still be required), the Rodeo or Pow 
Wow (if they book). Levels of service will be impacted at 18 crews instead of 20.

Continue to provide services at the same as in 2021.  Increase the beautification of 
North Battleford.                                                                

Pros: 

Cons: This will be an ongoing need.

External funding, i.e. grants

Other project costs, if any
Capital purchase

2023

-$                          

-$                          

30,355$                    

2022 2024

N/A

N/A

2 Parks Seasonal 
Laborers

-$                          

Sale of asset, if applicable

Parks & RecreationParks & Recreation

Quality Infrastructure

Capital reserve/carry forward

Less prior year spent

No
Gord Whitton
Nov. 9 2021

Betterment
Land Improvements

30,355$                    

N/A

2026

N/A

-$                                      

2025

-$                     

-$                     -$                                      

-$                          

Taxation required (A - B)

(A) Total Capital cost

-$                                      30,355$                    -$                          -$                          -$                     

Risk

High 5 15 25
Medium 3 9 15
Low 1 3 5

Low Medium High

Severity
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